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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it
is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief that. (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement in this report misleading, and (iij) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due
and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & BB E

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group in the year ended 31 December 2015 recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$50.0 million, which was an increase of
approximately HK$9.4 million compared with the last corresponding
year. In the business of provision of brokerage and securities margin
financing services, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$3.3 million which representing an increase of approximately
HK$1.3 million or 65% compared with the year ended 31 December
2014.

As encouraged by PRC government, the customers tend to prefer
and use BeiDou Navigation Satellite System (1t} &2 Efin &
#%), we are starting preparation to change the navigating chips
of electronic cards and devices of the school safety network to be
compatible and coordinate with the BeiDou Navigation Satellite
System (Jb 3L E1 2 Efif X4 ) to meet the customers’ needs.
Such change results in delay and postponement of orders by the
customers pursuant to previously executed contracts, as decreasing
the expected sales of electronic student cards and affecting the
trading of electronic student cards and school safety products. The
segment of the said trading recorded the revenue of approximately
HK$2.1 million and incurred an operating loss of approximately
HK$57.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The said
segment recorded the revenue and operating loss approximately
HK$2.6 million and approximately HK$7.4 million respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Use of BeiDou Navigation Satellite System (df 3|7 2 E i Z 4%)
will not have any negative impact on the customer relationship
concerning the sales contracts signed between the Group and the
customers earlier in relation to the order of terminal device and the
Location Based Services (£ & 7 L) platform used by the
terminal device as supporting BeiDou Navigation Satellite System
(b} B EEMEH) to get the position information of the mobile
end users.

For proprietary trading of stock, the Group recorded an unrealized
gain in the first quarterly results and interim results. However, an
unrealized loss of approximately HK$23.9 million was recorded for
the nine months ended 30 September 2015 due to Hong Kong stock
market crash in July 2015. Since Hong Kong stock market was
fluctuated in the second half year of 2015, the Group recorded an
unrealized loss of approximately HK$32.6 million and realized gain of
approximately HK$4.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE s STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In January 2015, the Group has entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement in PRC with the People’s Government of Fushun County,
Fushun City, Liaoning Province, PRC concerning the development of
bonded area for warehousing and logistics in Jiu Bing Town, Fushun
County, Fushun City, Liaoning Province, PRC. The establishment
of warehouse and logistic facilities, as for, including but not limited
to, the settlement and delivery purposes of the relevant business of
wholesale spot trading of various commodities from time to time of
an associated company of the Group, Shenzhen Qianhai First China
International Commodities Exchange Centre Limited.

In April 2015, the Group has entered into a framework investment
agreement with the People’s Government of Fushun City, Liaoning
Province, PRC and AREH B EXKRBREBER QA (transliterated
as Inner Mongolia Xiang Dao Photovoltaic Agricultural Company
Limited) concerning the proposed investment in the agricultural
industrial park and photovoltaic power generation plant project
with a total investment of RMB2.3 billion in Fushun City, Liaoning
Province, PRC.

In August 2015, the Group has entered into the framework
investment agreement with the People’s Government of Fushun
City, Liaoning Province, PRC concerning the proposed investment
in a bulk commodity trading centre pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the framework investment agreement as stated in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 August 2015.

In January 2015, a subsidiary of the Group, BB 5K #H OF
1) BBRA A (transliterated as First China Securities Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) (“Shenzhen First China”), entered into an
agreement of intent in relation to the proposed acquisition of 100%
of the registered capital of RE)E F¥eLIRAE R AR (transliterated as
Mingin Quantum New Energy Co., Ltd.). Upon further deliberations
of the issues in the proposed acquisition, there were certain issues
relating to the due diligence review which cannot be resolved to the
satisfaction of the Group, the parties thereunder mutually agreed to
terminate the agreement for intent and entered into the termination
agreement in May 2015.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & B E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

According to the termination agreement, refundable earnest money
of RMB20.0 million should be repaid by Yang Shunhong, one of the
vendors, to Shenzhen First China on 28 August 2015. At the request
of Yang Shunhong to extend the repayment of refundable earnest
money, Shenzhen First China entered into a supplemental agreement
with three of the vendors on 17 September 2015 to extend the
repayment date of the refundable earnest money to 30 November
2015.

On 30 November 2015, Yang Shunhong has still not repaid the
refundable earnest money to Shenzhen First China. Therefore,
Shenzhen First China filed an arbitration application to South
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
(Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration) against Yang Shunhong
concerning the repayment of the refundable earnest money on 1
December 2015. The details of the request under the arbitration
application were stated in the announcement of the Company dated
1 December 2015. Although the Group has filed an arbitration
application for the repayment of the refundable earnest money, after
taking consideration of the legal opinion, the management believes
that the amounts can be recovered by selling the pledged shares
since the vendors transferred entire registered capital of RE) = 75
BERABR AR (transliterated as Mingin Quantum New Energy Co.,
Limited) to Shenzhen First China as securities in January 2015.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately HK$50.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to
approximately HK$40.6 million for the previous year, there was
an increase of approximately HK$9.4 million or of approximately
23.2%. The sharply increase of revenue was primarily came from the
provision of consultancy services to an associate which operated in
the PRC.

The Group recorded a loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$61.0 million, compared with profit of approximately HK$117.2
million for the corresponding year. The loss of the year encompassed
the losses of fair value on securities trading for approximately
HK$32.6 million, compared with gains of fair value for approximately
HK$49.9 million for the previous year due to the equity market of
Hong Kong tumbled to its lowest level which struggling in the midst
of a volatile financial market stirred by China’s economic woes.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Results of the Group (continued)

The loss also took in the impairment of intangible assets, as part
of acquisition of a subsidiary in 2014, for approximately HK$93.2
million, no intangible assets needed to impair for the previous year.
The impact of impairment led to incurred an operating loss for
approximately HK$57.9 million which included the impairment of
intangible assets, increase of contingent consideration receivable
and reversal of deferred tax liabilities. There was approximately
HK$74.1 million recorded in the year ended 31 December 2014 for
gain on bargain purchase.

lts effect is reduced by the strong performance of an associate
which engaged in provision of trading platform for precious metals
and commodities in the PRC, the Group recorded approximately
HK$36.7 million (2014: approximately HK$1.6 million) from share of
profit for the year under review.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2015 amounted
to approximately HK$537.1 million compared with approximately
HK$575.1 million as at 31 December 2014. Among them, the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were approximately
HK$202.0 million (2014: approximately HK$197.7 million). All the
financial assets were invested in the equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and bank
balances were approximately HK$267.7 million (2014: approximately
HK$308.2 million) of which approximately HK$24.4 million (2014
approximately HK$14.2 million) were held on behalf of clients in trust
and segregated accounts.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$10.5 million (2014: approximately HK$12.4
million), of this, approximately HK$1.9 million (2014: approximately
HK$1.9 million) was repayable within one year. The borrowings were
secured by charges over the Group’s land and building as well as
corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Taking into account of
the amount of liquid assets in hand, the Broad is of the view that the
Group has sufficient financial resources for future development of the
existing business of the Group and other business when investment
opportunities arise.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & B E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (continued)

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$723.70 million as at 31 December 2015,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$72.3 million, or 9.1%
from that of 31 December 2014. The decrease was mainly due to
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign
exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$64,989,582 divided into 6,498,958,120 shares of HK$0.01
each.

Precious metals spot trading and brokerage

The revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$19.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, as compared to
approximately HK$36.3 million for the previous year, plunged
approximately 46.0% or approximately HK$16.7 million. It was
mainly attributable to tightened policy of the PRC Government on
regulating the precious metals trading and brokerage business of
the PRC in which the Group operated. It reported an operating profit
of approximately HK$4.5 million, representing a slump in profit of
approximately HK$4.8 million or of approximately 51.6% compared
with that of last year.

Stock information and research services

The total fee income of this segment rose to approximately HK$20.8
million for the year under review, representing a significant increase
compared with approximately HK$0.5 million for the corresponding
period. The fee income was mainly came from an associate, & 3|
AEEEEEE RSP OAR AT (transliterated as Shenzhen
Qianhai First China International Commodities Exchange Centre
Limited) which the Group held 38% interest. It reported an operating
profit of approximately HK$13.0 million for the year, compared with
loss of approximately HK$7.6 million of last year.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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CHIEE EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Trading of electronic student cards and school safety products
This segment recorded approximately HK$2.1 million of revenue
for the year under review compared with approximately HK$2.6
million for the same period last year. It is principally engaged
in development and exploration of various telecommunication
technologies in the PRC, in particular, electronic student card for
the school safety network. For the year under review, the navigating
chips of electronic cards and devices needed to change to operate
in coordination with the BeiDou Navigation Satellite System (1t}
BEEMM KH) as encouraged by PRC government. It led to slow
down the production of electronic cards and devices and incurred
an operating loss of approximately HK$57.9 million, included an
impairment of intangible assets for approximately HK$93.2 million.
The net loss of this segment included increase of contingent
consideration receivable and reversal of deferred tax liabilities,
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and it recorded a loss of
approximately HK$7.4 million for the corresponding period.

Brokerage and securities margin financing services

Total revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$3.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, compared with
approximately HK$2.0 million for the same period last year. There
was an increase of approximately 65.0% of previous year in line
with an increase of 52.1% of the average turnover of the Hong
Kong equity market. This segment loss reached approximately
HK$1.5 million while loss of approximately HK$2.4 million for the
corresponding period.

Trading and principal investments

The securities trading recorded a gain of approximately HK$4.3
million while it recorded a trading loss of approximately HK$0.8
million of the previous year. But it record a fair value losses of
approximately HK$32.6 million for the year under review compared
with a fair value gains of approximately HK$49.9 million of the
previous year, due to the equity market of Hong Kong tumbled to its
lowest level from the third quarter of 2015. The fair value turned from
gains of approximately HK$43.6 million from the half year period, to
losses of approximately HK$23.9 million for the nine months ended
30 September 2015. There was a further losses of fair value of
approximately HK$8.7 million for the 4th quarter of the year under
review. It showed an operating loss of approximately HK$29.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 versus an operating profit of
approximately HK$46.1 million of last year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Wealth management services

This segment did not record any revenue for the corresponding
period. It recorded an irrelevant revenue and profit for the year ended
31 December 2014.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment of the Group with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$32.4 million (2014: approximately HK$34.0
million) were pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2014: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

There was no other material acquisition/disposal which would have
been required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules for the
year under review. At present, the Group has no concrete plans for
any material investments.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a workforce of 173
employees (2014: 234). The total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$37.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately HK$33.8
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an
annual basis and commensurate with the industry pay level. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical
benefits and discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a
new share option scheme as an added incentive for its employees.
During the year, the Company had granted 20,000,000 new share
options to a Director according to the service agreement approved
by an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 18
September 2014.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to develop our current
businesses, such as (i) provision of the precious metals spot trading
and brokerage services in the PRC, (ii) provision of securities and
futures contracts trading services and wealth management services
in Hong Kong, (iii) trading and principal investments in the PRC
and Hong Kong, (iv) provision of a trading platform, (v) research,
exploration and development of the student safety network project
and the electronic student card in the PRC, and (vi) provision of
stock information and research services through the internet network
in the PRC.

Although Hong Kong and China stock markets were turbulence
in year 2015, the Group is confident and optimistic about the
prospects of the stock markets. We will closely monitor the changes
in the stock markets in order to increase profit or prevent the loss for
the Group.

As mentioned above, in the school safety network business, the
navigating chips of electronic cards and devices of the school safety
network has been started to change to coordinate the BeiDou
Navigation Satellite System (JL B2 E M Z5c) . It is expected that
such change can improve and enhance the revenue of the school
safety network business.

In year 2015, the Group and the vendors of REIE FHEERA
R/~ 7] (transliterated as Mingin Quantum New Energy Co., Ltd.)
mutually agreed to terminate the agreement for intent and entered
into the termination agreement and subsequently the extension
agreement concerning the repayment of the refundable earnest
money of RMB20.0 million by one of the vendors, Yang Shunhong
to Shenzhen First China. Given that Yang Shunhong has not repaid
the refundable earnest money of RMB20.0 million to Shenzhen First
China before the deadline as indicated in the extension agreement,
Shenzhen First China filed an arbitration application to South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (Shenzhen
Court of International Arbitration) (“SCIA”) against Yang Shunhong
concerning the repayment of the refundable earnest money of
RMB20.0 million and the hearing of the captioned arbitration
application has been scheduled to commence in the court of SCIA
on 4 March 2016, the result of which are expected to be released
after one month from the date of the hearing (subject to change) and
shall be announced by the Company as soon as available. For more
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 30
January 2015, 3 February 2015, 29 May 2015, 17 September 2015,
1 December 2015 and 16 February 2016.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & &HBE

The Group will continue to develop the innovative businesses and
look for opportunities to expand the income sources in order to
enhance the revenue of the Group.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board
Wang Jiawei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiawei, aged 29, obtained a Bachelor of Science in
Mathematics at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in
2009 and a Master of Science in Finance at City University London
in the United Kingdom in 2010. From October 2010 to July 2011,
he was a market analyst of the investment department in Shenzhen
Shouguan Investment Co., Limited in the PRC. Since August 2011,
Mr. Wang has been a manager of First China Securities Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the director of Victor
Creation Global Limited from August 2014 and Elpis Capital from
September 2014, and non-executive director of Elpis Capital Limited
from September 2014.

Mr. Chen Li, aged 51, is an independent non-executive director
of CCT Fortis Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00138). In 1985,
Mr. Chen received his Bachelor Degree in radio from the physics
department at the Jiangxi University in China (now known as
Nanchang University since the amalgamation of Jiangxi University
and Jiangxi Industrial University in 1993 and the Jiangxi Medical
College in 2005). In 1994, Mr. Chen was appointed as vice president
of XZMEHM AT, where he worked for 17 years. Then, he was
the director of /1 BI¥T % & AJIB R 2 F from 2011 to 2012 and
vice president of Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 08271) and FYIME g ES B AR A A from 2012 to 2014,
From September 2004 to June 2015, Mr. Chen was an independent
non-executive director of CCT Land Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00261).

Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, aged 46, received her Bachelor of Arts degree in
Financial Services from Edinburgh Napier University in Scotland. Ms.
Lai joined the Company in 14 July 2008 as the executive secretary
and has been promoted to the Head of Personnel and Administration
Department of the Company since 13 February 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREBAERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 42, obtained Bachelor Degree from
Department of Chinese of Nankai University in 1996. He also
holds qualifications of economist, registered securities investment
consulting analyst and registered insurance broker issued by various
professional organizations in China. For the past 17 years, Mr. Liu
has held different positions in various financial media institutions
and financial services institutions in Mainland China. During his
tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a responsible person for marketing
the newspaper “Securities Times”, he participated in establishing
the “Panorama Network” (www.p5w.net), a well-known securities
website in China and acted as its major responsible person. In 2000,
he acted as consultant in establishing and operating the program
“Securities Times” produced by “China Central Television”. From
2002 to 2007, he served as “Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen
Stock Exchange Shenzhen Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where
he participated in setting up and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-
hour PRC program regarding securities. Because of his outstanding
performance, he was elected as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the
“Shenzhen Stock Exchange” in 2004. Since 2011, Mr. Liu has served
Convoy China Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He
has been the executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY Asset
Management Co., Ltd. from 2013 to July 2015.

Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. (“Mr. Jim Rogers”), aged 73,
is an author, financial commentator, adventurer, and successful
international investor. He has been frequently featured in Time, The
Washington Post, The New York Times, Barron’s, Forbes, Fortune,
The Wall Street Journal, The Financial Times, The Business Times,
The Straits Times and many media outlets worldwide. He has also
appeared as a regular commentator and columnist in various media
and has been a professor at Columbia University. After attending
Yale and Oxford University, Mr. Jim Rogers cofounded the Quantum
Fund, a global-investment partnership. Mr. Jim Rogers also served
as a full professor of finance at the Columbia University Graduate
School of Business, and, in 1989 and 1990, as the moderator of
WCBS'’s ‘The Dreyfus Roundtable’ and FNN’s ‘The Profit Motive with
Jim Rogers’.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 76, graduated with a Bachelor
Degree from the Faculty of Engineering Physics of the Tsinghua
University in 1965. He was a visiting scholar in the Brookhaven
National Laboratory of USA and the Stuttgart University of Germany.
He was the vice director of the Tsinghua University R&D department
and the general manager of Tsinghua University Science and
Technology Corporation. During the period from 1999 to 2002,
he held various senior positions in two companies listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited
and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation. He was
the chairman and legal representative of Tsinghua Unisplendour
Guhan Group Corporation and president of Tsinghua Unisplendour
Limited before he left these companies in 2002. He then joined
Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation in 2002 and was its
president until 2004. Professor Zhang is currently the general vice
president and secretary of the Beijing Non-Governmental Science &
Technology Entrepreneurs Association. With his remarkable business
leadership as well as exploratory initiatives, Professor Zhang had
made tremendous contribution to the companies he worked for.
He has not only gained compliments from the society at large, but
has also won a series of honors. In 1997, Professor Zhang received
the national prize of “The Third Term Science and Technology Light
Award for Outstanding Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”.
In 2000, he won the “Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding
Entrepreneur Award” and the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award
issued by the Beijing Non-Governmental Science and Technology
Entrepreneurs Association. In 2002, he was selected as the first lot
of “Zhongguan Village Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Prof Zhang is
currently an independent director of Beijing Lanxum Technology Co.,
Ltd (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
300010).
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EEREREBAEERE

Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 58, graduated from Shanghai Maritime
University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also received
a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius College
of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 30-year experience working in the field of
accounting and corporate finance and has substantial experience
in management in various listed companies, investment business,
investor relations and project management. He was the senior
manager of both the investment department and finance department
of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998 to June 2000.
He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost Corporation
from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to May 2004, he was a
General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources Power
Holdings Co., Ltd. He has been a director of Concord Investment
Holdings Limited since 2004.

Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 61, graduated from 1t Bt 48 K
& (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a Bachelor
Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and a PhD in
Economics from H=#AE (Jilin University). He is a qualified PRC
lawyer currently practising at EZE X & A E#FT (Liaoning Tianhe
Law Firm). Mr. Chen has substantial management and leadership
experience serving in the PRC government. He commenced his
career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous
County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the director
(EMFE) of REMLERFNEZEE Benxi City Commission for
Restructuring the Economic Systems) from 1995. He was the vice
director general (Bl ) of ZEZMEINEHEE FEIEZEE (Benxi
Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation Committee) from 1998 until
2001. From 2003 to 2014, Mr. Chen was the professor and the tutor
for doctorate students at A& T K E2 /A £ % 18 815X B2 E 07 (School
of Public Administration and Law of Dalian University of Technology).
He is currently a director of FEI KEBBEEE (LB BRHBERA
A) (China Dalian International Cooperation (Group) Holdings Ltd)
(Shenzhen Stock Exchange Stock Code: 000881).
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman lIslands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 41 to 42.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends
to its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In
accordance with Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$nil as at 31 December 2015.

IRECTORS’ REPORT
EEETRE

EEMARZEFERSURARARAE
ERE—_FT-AF+_A=t—RHLFEZ
RECEAMB®REK -

TEEH
RRARIRZZEZE—FHAZTHBERERS
HERREEHEREIMANLRERRE
fRAA] e

X 3
ARPRREERAR ENBARZEE
EBREMFRHN G B RERME18 -

RERERE
AEBBE_T-—AF T _A=t—HL*HF
EZRXREBEHNFEMAEEREZGEEBRaRA
b2 EBARRKRA -

EE TR E—_TRF+ A=+~
B FEIRM RS REBEARRERE (=
T—MF &)

Y- HBERRE
AEERARTRERZ DK 5 RRE
BHHERNGAHBARN S -

Bz &
AR A A
32°

FIRENEEM BRI E

o] # 53 Tk 5 #8

RERSHEQRE METAANABZARME
A AR KA b A R O R E ADA TE BB BE R
A AR B B A UK B TR - IRIBE AN
RAEZ AREBERRARFE137E KEA8
ARAEMBIEENEBMEZTARBES
EMERFEED TR LR o 14335 8 5 &R
s ERALE AR R INA B B B R E K
EARS B R=FT—AF+=_A=+—
B ARAIAHYIRFEE ST ETT

BENRAKREEERAA
“E-AFFH

5 L b

17



DIRECTORS REPORT
EETHRE

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Chen Li

Lai Yuk Mui (@ppointed on 1 August 2015)

Wang Wenming (resigned on 22 September 2015)
Lee Yiu Sun (resigned on 22 September 2015)
Haroon Hasan (resigned on 4 February 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Liu Runtong
James Beeland Rogers Jr.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

Tony | Tong (resigned on 22 September 2015)

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are Mr. Wang Jiawei and Mr. Li Jianxing.
In accordance with Article 86(3), Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, being appointed
by the Directors after the Company’s last annual general meeting
held on 25 June 2015, will hold office until the annual general
meeting. All three directors are being eligible for re-election and will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The remaining Directors shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

5

EEEHE

ESRITHAHENR AL M5 - HEEKRS

REHZHEBRAXE
R-Z-—HEF+-_A=+—RB BFRAR

BIITHBRHEEARNR R REEMEE ZE (F
ERBHFRBEKROIEXVER) 2 &5 - HER
HEESHFT BEREBEZESFKBEERMNEXV
BR8N WE ME AR A MR T 2 S
%ﬁ%(@%mﬁmﬁﬁﬂfhmﬁﬁhx
BEWEEIREREERZIAR) - IR
% %&%fh%%%MWEﬂﬁW%M%L

BRMAZERIOAE HBEAIZER L™
%ﬁ%%546i5aﬂﬁaﬁw“$ 7) N Bt 22 By
ZHERIORBEWT

(a) MELITRHGBZEFR

Number of shares

R E

Approximate

Personal Family Corporate percentage of

Interests Interests Interests Total shareholding

Name of Directors EEi & 1B N HE 23 e AT BE BoERaE S
Wang Jiawei FEE 202,043,628 - - 202,043,628 3.11%
Lai Yuk Mui RE1E 2,780,127 - - 2,780,127 0.04%
Liu Runtong 21 2,646,000 - - 2,646,000 0.04%
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(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MREFLATHEABRMBZEE
Share option scheme of the Company XL EREE
The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 KABRZEE—F+ZA+tBEMN
December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has expired ZBERESE ([EBRESEHER
on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a new share —E——FFT AT NBEER ARAF
option scheme on its annual general meeting held on 21 June RZE——FRNAZ+—B872K
2012 (the “New Share Option Scheme”) which complies with RBEFXGRATHEEIER R
Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules. Fo3E 2 AT EE IR ERT B ([F B AR RERT
&) e
The following table discloses the details of the share options TEREBRESRTHEBEERNEBEE S
held by the Directors and chief executive to subscribe for — AT A=T—HIEFEMFEEN
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December RERNRRRG 2 BREFS:
2015:
Number of share options
ERENE
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
Name of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December price
Director Date of grant 2015 year year year 2015  Option period (HK$)
R-B-1% R-%-1%
-A-A ERESH/ +ZR=t+-8 Figid
EEiE RiHAH HRLTE EREH ERTE %% HATE BRESR (%7
Liu Runtong 13104/2010 31,861,575 - - - 31861575 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0419
bt “Z-ZFNAT=A “E-REMA+=A--F-FEMAT-R
Zhang Benzheng  13/04/2010 2,124,105 - - S 2124105 13004/2010-12/04/2020 0419
FARE “T-ZERATEA “E-FEMA+ZA-—F-FEMAT-R
Haroon Hasan ~ 22/09/2014 10,000,000 - - 10000000 - 22000/2014-21/09/2024 0518
(Note 1)
Haroon Hasan ZE-MENAZTCA iRa)) ZE-MENACFZA-ZEZMENACT-H
James Beslond  16/10/2015 - 20000000 - - 20000000 16/10/2015-15/10/2025 0238
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland  —E-AF+A A “E-RETA+AR-ZE-REHATRA
Rogers Jr.
James Besland  22/00/2014 20,000,000 - - - 20000000  22/00/2014-21/09/2024 0518
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland  —E-MEAA-TCH I-PMEAAZT-A-ZF-MEAA-T-R
Rogers Jr.
Chen Li 13/11/2014 15,000,000 - - - 15000000 13/11/2014-12/11/2024 0590
B®h ZIT-RET-A1=H —E-MmE+-A+=R--E-ME+-A+-R
Note: B 5E
(1) With effect from 4 February 2015, Mr. Haroon Hasan resigned as an (1) BEZ-Z— A% = AMNA  Haroon Hasan’t

executive director of the Company. Accordingly his entitlement to share
option lapsed on the same date. Reference is made to the announcement
of the Company dated 4 February 2015.
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(c)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executive to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor
any of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

Short positions in underlying shares of the Company

No short positions of directors and chief executives in the
underlying shares of the equity derivatives of the Company and
its associated corporations were recorded in the register or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(c)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
So far as is known to any Directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2015, the following persons (not being a Director of the
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

FERERREMBALIREFLTRG XA
ARG ZHEBERXE

BARRESEMA R_T—HF+_-A
=t— B REFHFLBEEHEIB6HEFE
ZERMAAEs FTIAL (LIFEARAE
B)IREO BN HEDERESF R
HEGROIEXVEFE2 M35 AR IE A& KA A
KB 3Pl 2 #E 2t

(a) RELFERHBZEIFR

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
3 E 5% BRHHE #MOKRESH
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 1) Beneficial owners 595,328,957 9.16%
T XA RBREHE (M) E=mlEA A

Zhu Wei Beneficial owners 350,004,000 5.39%
K EmEAA

Note: B 5T

(1) Ms. Chen Dongjin held 145,116,650 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen
Dongijin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who held 450,212,307
shares of the Company. As such, they were deemed to be collectively
interested in 595,328,957 shares of the Company.

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

(1) FBREELZLTHEHE145116,6500 4 2 7 ik
HoBLELZLATINHALEEZRE ME
SRR % A 3 450,212,307 B8 AR R BB A7
E bt - 1% 4 4R 2 A #55595,328,957 %
KA R BAD

(b) MAAEAERGZIFE

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
B% 3R 3 & 515 RHBBE #MOKRI DL
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 2) Beneficial owners 11,682,577 0.18%
EXARRELE (f52) BEnEAA

Note: B 5

2) Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, Mr. Wang Wenming was
granted share options on 13 April 2010, the number of shares underlying
which was adjusted on 15 June 2010, to subscribe for 11,682,577 shares
of the Company. Ms. Chen Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming
so they were deemed to be collectively interested in the share options to
subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of the Company.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company
had not been notified of any other person (other than the Directors
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company and was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other members of the Group.

DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

Share Option Schemes of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which the
Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or certain
other persons may be granted share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
Scheme.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 December
2001 has expired on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a
new share option scheme on its annual general meeting held on 21
June 2012 which complies with Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme
() Purpose of the scheme
The purpose of the scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.
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(i)

(1)

(v)

Participants of the scheme

Pursuant to the scheme, the Company may grant share
options to (i) employees of the Company (whether fulltime
or part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (i) Directors (whether executive Directors,
non-executive Directors or independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; (iii) suppliers of goods and/or
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; and (iv) professionals engaged
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
schemes

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme
was 629,895,812 shares, representing 9.69% of the total
issued share capital.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under any schemes of the Company
(or its subsidiary) if this will result in such limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted pursuant to the scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including the
Pre-IPO Share Option Plan) to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of the options
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue, save for those share options already
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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(v)

(V)

(vii)

(Viii)

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during a period of not more
than ten years to be notified by the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) to each participant which
period of time shall commence on the date on which an
offer of the grant of an option is accepted or deemed
to have been accepted in accordance with the scheme
and expire on the last day of such period as determined
by the Board. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the
grant and received by the Company within 14 days from
the offer date or within such offer period of time as may
be determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under the
scheme is determined by the Board and notified to each
participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer,
and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the scheme

The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 16
December 2011. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2012 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or Board may at any time terminate
the operation of the New Share Option Scheme) and
in such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the Old Share Option Scheme and the New
Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain in
full force and effect.

(V)

(Vi)

(vii)

(Viii)
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(2) Details of share options granted by the Company (2) XLGHRHBREZHE
On 5 September 2007, 13 April 2010, 22 September 2014, 13 RZZEELFNARA ZE—FF
November 2014 and 16 October 2015, options to subscribe MA+=H -ZZ— iﬂﬂ ‘1’ -
for 32,400,000 shares, 84,000,000 shares, 30,000,000 shares, B ZF—mF+—HA+t=BK=
15,000,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares of the Company —hAEFE+At+AREHSARESE K 75
respectively were granted to the Directors and certain AN AETEE KL AR 32,400,000
employees of the Company. As at 31 December 2015, details f% - 84,000,0008% + 30,000,000/ -
of the outstanding options were as follows: 15,000,0004% %20,000,0008% 7 A 7]
RSz BRE- R -—F—HE+ =
=t—B mARTEBREZFBEL
T
Number of share options
BhR#EYE
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during the during the during the ~ 31 December price
Date of grant 2015 (Note 1) year year year 2015 (Note 1)  Option period (HK$)
R-%-1% R-F-1%
-A-H +ZB=+-8
T ERits/ i AT R
EHAH (HiaE1) EREL ERfTE s (M) BRESR (%7)
05/09/2007 4,779,236 - - - ATT82% 05I092007-041092017 0215
ZTTLENREA FELENARE-—E-LEAANA
18/04/2010 86,026,253 - - - 86,026,253 13/04/20 2/04/2020 0.419
—“T-TEMmA+=A “Z-ZEMATZA-2-FFMATCA
22/09/2014 30,000,000 - - 10,000,000 20,000,000 22/09/20 4-21/09/2024 0.518
(Note 2)
ZT-RmEARZTZA (BizE2) “E-MEARCTCH-ZE-NEAA-T-H
13/11/2014 156,000,000 - - - 15,000,000  13/11/2014-12/11/2024 0.590
ZT-MmET-FT=A “EZ-ME+-B+tZB--E-ME+-AT2A
16/10/2015 - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 16/10/20 -16/10/2025 0.238
ZE-RE+ARA T-RETAEtAR-ZEZRETATHRA

Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, 32,400,000 and 84,000,000
shares of share options were granted by the Company on 5 September
2007 and 13 April 2010 respectively and were adjusted on 15 June 2010.

(2) With effect from 4 February 2015, Mr. Haroon Hasan resigned as an

executive director of the Company. Accordingly his entitlement to share

option lapsed on the same date. Reference is made to the announcement
of the Company dated 4 February 2015.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described above and in
Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, save as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

LITIGATION
(@) Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) Action
Number HCMP 2502/2012 against Former Directors

According to the 2014 annual report and announcements
dated 9 November 2012, 13 November 2012 and 28 January
2015 of the Company, the SFC has served a petition under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance against three former
Directors (Mr. Yin Yingneng Richard, Mr. Wang Wenming
and Mr. Lee Yiu Sun) of the Company and the Company in
November 2012. By a High Court order on 16 January 2015,
the said former Directors were ordered to pay the Company a
total sum of RMB18,692,000 with interest as compensation.

A summons has been initiated by the SFC on 9 March 2015
against the proposed extension of time for the repayment
of the said compensation, with the relevant hearing fixed to
be heard on 22 April 2015. The hearing was vacated on 21
April 2015 by consent summons as the repayment of the said
compensation by Mr. Wang Wenming to the Company had
been completed on 20 April 2015 and the proposed extension
was not necessary.
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LITIGATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

Litigation against B EEH B (FI) FRASF
(transliterated as First China Securities Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.) (“Shenzhen First China”) Concerning
the Pledge Agreement of Equipment and the Repayment
of Refundable Earnest Money

According to the announcements of the Company dated
30 January 2015, 3 February 2015, 29 May 2015, 17
September 2015, 14 October 2015 and 4 January 2016, a
writ of summons was issued by the People’s Court of Mingin
County in the PRC concerning an action initiated by #7584
BETEEREEGR AR (transliterated as Xinjiang Tebian
Electric Apparatus Zikong Equipment Co., Limited)(“Xinjiang
Tebian”) against RE)=E F¥ge )R EMR Q7 (transliterated as
Mingin Quantum New Energy Co. Ltd.)(“Mingin Quantum”) and
Shenzhen First China. The writ was received by Shenzhen First
China on 13 October 2015.

Xinjiang Tebian alleged that (i) the guarantee agreement
entered into between Mingin Quantum and Shenzhen First
China dated 29 January 2015 is invalid, and (i) the Xinjiang
Tebian remains as the holder of the equipments, which Mingin
Quantum has pledged to Shenzhen First China as security for
the refund of the refundable earnest money pursuant to the
guarantee agreement entered into between Mingin Quantum
and Shenzhen First China dated 29 January 2015.

The court decision of the said action was delivered by People’s
Court of Mingin County in the PRC on 23 December 2015 (the
“Decision”), ruling in favour of Xinjiang Tebian and ordered that
the pledge agreement of equipment between Mingin Quantum
and Shenzhen First China dated 29 January 2015 is void nor
have legal effect. The Company is in the course of seeking
legal advice for an appeal against the Decision and the legal
consequence of the said Decision.

Arbitration Application Filed by Shenzhen First China
Concerning the Repayment of Refundable Earnest Money
According to the announcements of the Company dated 30
January 2015, 3 February 2015, 29 May 2015, 17 September
2015, 1 December 2015 and 16 February 2016, Shenzhen
First China filed an arbitration application to SCIA against Mr.
Yang Shunhong concerning the repayment of the refundable
earnest money of RMB20,000,000 together with the interest
of RMB997,260 and a penalty of RMB18,800,000 payable to
Shenzhen First China.

The Company has received a notice from SCIA that the hearing
of the arbitration application has been scheduled to commence
in the court of SCIA on 4 March 2016, the result of which are
expected to be released after one month from the date of the
hearing (subject to change) and shall be announced by the
Company as soon as available.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the Group’s turnover attributable to its
five largest customers combined accounted for less than 45% of the
Group’s total turnover. The Group had no major supplier due to the
nature of principal activities of the Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015 were audited
by Cheng & Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of Cheng & Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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EEXEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in
good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code,
except for the following deviation:

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Wang has extensive experience in project
management and securities investments and is responsible for the
overall corporate strategies, planning and business development
of the Company. Under the supervision by the Board which is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors and two
non-executive Directors, which represent more than half of the
Board, the interests of the shareholders of the Company will be
adequately and fairly represented.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The directors have complied with the Company’s code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of three executive and five non-executive directors
(including three independent non-executive directors), the present
board has an appropriate composition of directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent non-
executive directors are independent. The present board is composed
of more than one-third of independent non-executive directors.

The present board of directors consists of:

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Chen Li (Executive Director)
Lai Yuk Mui (appointed on 1 August 2015)
(Executive Director)
Wang Wenming (resigned on 22 September 2015) (Chairman)

Lee Yiu Sun (resigned on 22 September 2015)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Haroon Hasan (resigned on 4 February 2015)
(Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

James Beeland Rogers Jr. (Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)

Tony | Tong (resigned on 22 September 2015)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to
16 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly,
interim and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the
Group’s business to ensure that these risks are within manageable
limits. It is also mandated to approve any substantial investment,
acquisition or disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters
that are delegated to the management include the execution of
business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board and the
preparation of quarterly, interim and annual reports for the Board’s
approval.
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EEXEERME

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
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Directors at the board meetings was as follows: FREOEERAT:
Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service
HEERHBEERRE
Members 24 ERERITERRE
Wang Jiawei FTEE 4/4
Chen Li bR 51 4/4
Lai Yuk Mui REH(RZZE—RAFNA—BEZEHE) 2/2
(appointed on 1 August 2015)
Wang Wenming EFXH(RZFE—RAFNAAZTZBEE) 3/3
(resigned on 22 September 2015)
Lee Yiu Sun TR (RZE—RFNLAZ+ZHEMT) 3/3
(resigned on 22 September 2015)
Haroon Hasan Haroon Hasan (A —ZE— 4 — A H &) 0/0
(resigned on 4 February 2015)
Liu Runtong 2 E R 4/4
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 4/4
Zhang Benzheng RAIE 4/4
Li Jianxing AT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen PR a1 XX 4/4
Tony | Tong EE(RZE—RAFNA -+ ZHEE) 3/3

(resigned on 22 September 2015)

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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There was one general meeting during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the general meeting was as follows:

EXERHRE

FRLBIT R
ZHBERNT

Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HEEHBEERRE
Members 542 ERBITERRE
Wang Jiawei FRE 1/1
Chen Li BN 0/1
Lai Yuk Mui RE(RZE—0LF/\A—-RBEZE) 0/0
(appointed on 1 August 2015)
Wang Wenming FXH(RZZE—RAFNLAZ+ZAET) 0/1
(resigned on 22 September 2015)
Lee Yiu Sun R (R —RAFNA=-+TZHET) 1/1

(resigned on 22 September 2015)

Haroon Hasan Haroon Hasan (R =—Z— A%~ AN HET) 0/0
(resigned on 4 February 2015)
Liu Runtong 21 R 0/1
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 0/1
Zhang Benzheng sk AN IE 0/1
Li Jianxing ESEEe) 0/1
Chen Shu Wen Bk 151 2 0/1
Tony | Tong EE(RZZE—RAFNLAZTZHEIT) 1/1

(resigned on 22 September 2015)

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui has attended training courses
conducted by professional parties. The attended director has

EFEEIIREEER
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RBR BRUENEME MG UHERE
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EEeFhER-

FA-REBLI2MTEXERRANNE
IR -F2ENESERELEEARTA

provided the Company with her respective training records pursuant FRIARAIBERESE 2 Eliik 283
to the Corporate Governance Code. All directors were provided with =B #1575 B 1878 %EE'J& S BT E Y B
reading materials on relevant rules and regulatory updates. EER -

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS ESiNE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with &2 _JEﬁJZ_L TMEEe WAEZETHE
specific written terms of reference. The present Remuneration #&HE -WITHMEE S 2 KABLHK E BB
Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive M FE#ITEE -

directors.
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EEXEERME

As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted
of five directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms.
Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Li Jianxing and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three
out of the five directors are independent non-executive directors.
Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-executive
director, is the chairman of the committee. The Remuneration
Committee’s role and function includes making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and
senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis of
the contributions of staff and directors. Long-term incentive schemes
for staff and directors include share options and cash bonuses.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
executive directors according to their experience, duties and
responsibilities as well as the market conditions. Ensuring that no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
specific written terms of reference. As at year end date, Nomination
Committee consisted of four directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng,
Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Li Jianxing and Professor Chen Shu Wen.
Three out of the four directors are independent non-executive
directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-
executive director, is the chairman of the committee. Thus the
present Committee consists a majority of independent non-executive
directors. The Nomination Committee’s role and function includes,
but is not limited to, reviewing the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge and
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) of the board of directors on a regular basis
and making recommendations regarding any proposed changes;
identifying and recommending individuals suitably qualified to
become board members; and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee review
suggested the candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value
of the Company are considered for nomination to the board of
directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work included
reviewing one candidate for directorship, having regard to her
reputation and her specific skill, in view of their potential contribution
to the Company, it subsequently made recommendations thereon to
the board of directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31 December 2015, the Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor Zhang Benzheng and Mr. Chen Shu Wen.
Mr. Li Jianxing, being an independent non-executive director, is the
chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function
includes making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.

The Audit Committee have reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and were of the opinion that
such statements had complied with applicable accounting standards
and that adequate disclosures had been made in respect thereof.
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The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:

[0

EREBERFAGEITAR
ZHBERNT

i)y

% HAK

\

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEEHEERAY
Members 541 ERBITERRE
Li Jianxing AT 5/5
Zhang Benzheng sRASIE 5/5
Chen Shu Wen Bk 151 2 5/5
Tony | Tong EE(RZZE—RAFNLAZTZHEHIT) 4/4

(resigned on 22 September 2015)

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 39 to
40.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015 were audited
by Cheng & Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that Cheng & Cheng Limited be reappointed as the auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, Cheng & Cheng Limited in respect of audit services
and non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$450,000 and
HK$190,000 respectively.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires management
to establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls.
Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls has been conducted by
management on an on-going basis to ensure that the system of
internal control is effective and adequate.

During the year, the Audit Committee’s work included having
held five meetings to liaise and discuss with the external auditors
and listening to reports from the management on the financial
management, financial statements and audit of the Company. It
was found that the management of the Company and its respective
subsidiaries performed their respective works wholeheartedly. They
have discharged their duties in good faith in line with their corporate
constitutions to make sure that the operations of the business run
compliantly. During the course of managerial control, advice and
recommendation is collected and forwarded for discussion in the
board meetings. There has been no significant issue arising out of
financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls in
the Group. Accordingly, the Board believed that there would be no
significant matter to be brought to the shareholders’ attention.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Man See Yee. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2015.
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CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXERHE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

mowm ow s M OF K AR AW
10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
FIRST CHINA FINANCIAL NETWORK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First
China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
41 to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

5

\ -

T AuDITOR’S REPOR

VAR %

REEMCHKREFTRATLZEBRE
(RESHEAME L FERAA)

RIZBEE BN FE41BEEFI167TEH
FEIRMEEBAERAT ([ERF]) REK

BLom (HpEKE]) 2EAMBRE
HEFAVBRREBER_T—AF+-A
=T HZEEMBRABRREREZA L
FEzZGABEMAMBEZERARRE HE
ROSPRERMGEARSRER UEEE
SRR E R AR EEH

EEMGEMBRRARBEZEE

BERAEFERARARBELGHMAERM
Z ABAWBHREEN) RFE (RAEH)
CERBERREEEMBRER USKEEH
BHREFHEEMRAFHRBR LEEER
RREE AT RERT L ERRERIEH] - LA
FHREMBRIFERNRFFRFBERMER
BB A 8 AR PR -

3 (T A—g s

AZEE 2 B EERBEANZ A 2 Tt ¥ %
ERAVBBRELER AEREZEBRR
EW BRULAIRRER T EE M AR - Az
BRI AREATHEMEMALAE £
HAEEREE

AZBMERBEFEGHMAGHEMZ (B
BEAER) EITE - ZFEUELAEH
AhE ST BRRE  WHREI MAITER AEE
BEREMBRRES M ETMEANER
BR st o

BENRAKREEERAA
“E-AFFH

39



40

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\ EED IR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016

Cheng Hong Cheung
Practising Certificate number P01802

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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CoNsoOLIDATED STATEMENT oF ProFT orR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EABEFEREMEEBRANE R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

2015 2014
—E¥-1fF —ET—-MEF
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 I BT
Revenue L 5 50,007,292 40,616,592
Cost of sales 85 & BN (1,318,189) (2,243,738)
Gross profits EH 48,689,103 38,372,854
Other income and net (loss)/gains Hap W AR (E5#8),/
W F A 7 (22,697,637) 86,365,886
Employee benefits expenses EERFAMAX 10 (37,241,505) (33,825,167)
Depreciation of property, Y SR REEITE
plant and equipment 15 (5,451,113) (5,613,885)
Amortization of intangible assets BV EESE 16 (2,084,557) (887,435)
Impairment of intangible assets | EERE 16 (93,191,960) -
Impairment loss of REE QR 2
interests in associates B EE 19 (5,059,075) -
Finance costs =N 8 (344,576) (399,844)
Other operating expenses Hp @ (26,322,548) (31,368,196)
Gain on bargain purchase EERE RS - 74,145,459
Change in fair value of contingent JEUW S ARE 2
consideration receivable NEEE 20 27,278,678 (8,018,240)
Share of profit or loss of associate JE (R B 2 N B A sk Es 1B 36,748,757 1,594,693
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSRLAT (&18) /78 9 (79,676,433) 120,366,125
Income tax income/(expense) Frisfiw A (Fx) 13 18,628,673 (3,147,706)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EBE), /78 (61,047,760) 117,218,419
Other comprehensive loss: Hih2mEEHE:
Items that may be reclassified to Bt B EEBam
profit or loss ZHH
Currency translation differences: BHENZ%8:
- Group -5 (12,344,742) (235,204)
— Share of other comprehensive —FEGEEE QR H A
income of an associate 2mUBA (2,254,284) (534,354)
Other comprehensive loss FREMEEEER S/
for the year, net of tax (14,599,026) (769,558)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2@E(BE),/
for the year WA BE (75,646,786) 116,448,861

BENKEKREEERDA

“E2-REER
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF PRoFIT oR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EAeBEFEREMETEBRANRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—¥—-1fF —E—mF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE1E (B548) F1i8
Owners of the Company ZiN/NESTE SN 14 (62,850,046) 114,540,442
Non-controlling interests JEIE R i e 1,802,286 2,677,977
(61,047,760) 117,218,419
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRELZHE (EE),
for the year attribute to: ' PNL-
Owners of the Company KRARER A (77,385,459) 113,788,027
Non-controlling interests JEVERR = 1,738,673 2,660,834
(75,646,786) 116,448,861
(Loss)/earnings per share FRAFATHEBEANEESEK
attributable to owners of (E518) &7
the Company for the year
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREN (&BE),/
(HK cents) ABF) (AB) 14
From (loss)/profit for the year FA(E8E),/FIHE (0.97) 2.31
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREE (58),/
(HK cents) BF) (AB) 14
From (loss)/profit for the year FR(EE) /F)E (0.97) 2.14

42 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosiTION
A MR SR

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZT—AF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—A%F —E—NF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I 7T
Non-current asset ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment LR PSR 15 40,711,061 42,547,096
Intangible assets B EE 16 142,651,502 246,839,417
Statutory deposits and other assets FEEREMNEMEE 17 2,304,395 6,106,735
Interests in associates AL/ NG o Ea 19 47,942,898 25,251,797
Contingent consideration receivable JE Y B AR AE 20 31,511,100 4,232,422
265,120,956 324,977,467
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 3,729,957 3,202,908
Trade receivables JEUWE 5 FRIA 22 9,800,843 7,507,770
Loans and receivables BN ERFRIAE 23 19,518,345 17,427,620
Financial assets at fair value BAFETFAERZ
through profit or loss TREE 24 201,969,810 197,682,520
Prepayments, deposits and ENFIE - EE R
other receivables E U 5008 25 33,578,031 8,479,016
Amounts due from former Directors FEWREESE A 26 831,419 32,541,415
Bank balances and cash RITHEH MR 27 265,901,547 306,319,906
Restricted cash ZREIRE 27 1,815,795 1,910,811
537,145,747 575,071,966
Total assets BEHEE 802,266,703 900,049,433
Current liabilities REN&E
Trade payables JEE 5B 28 16,681,530 15,556,792
Other payables and accruals E b S ROE R ERTRIB 29 4,388,082 6,743,910
Current income tax payable BVERFE B P15 B 541,663 3,312,793
Borrowings R 30 10,494,013 12,377,681
32,105,288 37,991,176
Net current assets mEAEFE 505,040,459 537,080,790
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEAEBRAISEE 770,161,415 862,058,257

BENKEKREEERDA
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN

REMBRKA SR

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZT—RAF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—-AfF —E—mF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I BT
Non-current liabilities ERHERE
Deferred income tax liabilities RS AE 31 39,445,051 60,798,607
39,445,051 60,798,607
Net assets SEFE 730,716,364 801,259,650
Capital and reserves BEREE
Share capital % < 32 64,989,582 64,989,582
Share premium R 17 % 8 32 1,614,798,866 1,614,798,866
Special reserve Rl & 33 4,778,740 4,778,740
Statutory reserve VR TE 33 3,911,530 -
Translation reserve PE 5 (1 33 (4,496,526) 10,038,887
Share-based compensation reserve [i% 1 78 18 5 1 34 34,149,275 29,832,788
Accumulated losses RETEE (994,422,010)  (928,447,064)
Equity attributable to owners of EATIHER AE(LER
the Company 723,709,457 795,991,799
Non-controlling interests FEfERR RS 7,006,907 5,267,851
Total equity WA 730,716,364 801,259,650

Wang Jiawei
EEE
Director

EF

Lai Yuk Mui
REH

Director

BF

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EaQuiTy
GEEBREEH R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRFAER
Share-based Non-
Share Share Special Statutory  Translation Warrants Compensation Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve Reserve reserve reserve Reserve losses Total interest equity
kx  RBEE HhlEE RS Entih SRESHE BOEREE  RHBR B8 FERER  BR9E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
fon B B B B B B AL BT BT o
(Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 34)
(Hi32) (Hi32) (M13133) (M3£33) (H13E33) (Mit3d)
Balance as at 1 January 2014 RZT-ME-F-B248 44589602 1,075500,687 4,778,740 - 10,791,302 203224 23,254,749 (1,042,987,506) 116,150,798 2,607,017 118,757,815
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £A2ERAEE - - - - (752,415) - - 114540442 113788027 2,660834 116,448,861
Equity-setfled share option arangements ~ MARELE 2 BR% - - - - - - 6578039 - 6578039 - 6578039
Issue of shares by way of placement BAREYARA 8,899,980 355,999,200 - - - - - - 364,899,180 - 364,899,180
Issue of shares upon exercise of warant  ERREZEAFEMEIRG 8000000 91,423,224 - - - (223,204) - - 99,200,000 - 99,200,000
Issue of shares related with business REBAGEIRG
combination 3,500,000 101,500,000 - - - - - - 105,000,000 - 105,000,000
Transaction costs attributable to RERNEERAHA
the placement of shares - (9,624,245) - - - - - - (9,624,245) - (9,624,245)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 RZF-mE
TIRZT-RZER 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 4,778,740 - 10,038,887 - 29832788 (928,447,064 795,991,799 5,267,851 801,259,650
Balance as at 1 January 2015 RIZ-RE-A-B24% 64989582 1,614,798,866 4,778,740 - 10,038,887 - 29,832,788 (928,447,064) 795,991,799 5,267,851 801,259,650
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EEREE - - - - (14535,413) - - (62,850,046) (77,385,459) 1,738,678  (75,646,786)
Equity-settled share option arangements  MARRiER B2 BR%H - - - - - - 5103117 - 5103117 - 5,103,117
Transfer of share-based compensation ~ BRERZ U ERE
reserve upon the forfeiture or expiry of ~ BARGBEEE
share options - - - - - - (786,630) 786,630 - - -
Share of revenue reserve of an associate  EfE—EBED A MERE - - - 391,530 - - - (3,911,530 - - -
Capital contribution from non-controling ~~ FZRERTE
interests - - - - - - - - - 383 383
Balance s at 31 December 2015
64,089,582 1,614,798,866 4,778,740 3,911,530  (4,496,526) - 34149275 (994,422,010) 723,709,457 7,006,007 730,716,364
BENKEZEETRAAE
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CoNsoOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CasH FLows
EABREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-4fF —E—OF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 T T
Cash flows from operating activities EZEHAEHEHEE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BTG AT (EE) FE (79,676,433) 120,366,125
Adjustments for: TR B TE
- Depreciation of property, — M MEREERE
plant and equipment 5,451,113 5,613,885
— Gain on disposal of property, —HEME KR
plant and equipment BEAT S = (135,000) -
— Amortization of intangible assets — B EE#E 2,084,557 887,435
- Impairment of intangible assets - | EERE 93,191,960 -
— Impairment of —REE AR R
interests in assoicates BE 5,059,075 -
— Written off of property, — W% 3 MR HUR
plant and equipment 70,331 3,511

— Gain on bargain purchase —E B R
— Change in fair value of contingent — WS AREZ
consideration receivable NEEZDY

— Fair value losses/(gains) on securities —&FH X 5 2 AF1E

(27,278,678)

(74,145,459)

8,018,240

trading BB (aE) 32,641,510 (49,886,317)
— Share of results of associates /N (36,748,757) (1,594,693)
- Equity-settled share based — DRSS 2 BB

arrangements 5,103,117 6,578,039
— Interest income —F B WA (5,158,875) (9,336,918)
- Dividend income — B A (8,252,448) -
Operating cash flows before EELEHEZ

changes in working capital BEBERE (8,648,528) 6,503,848

— Statutory deposits and other assets —AFEE REMEE 3,802,340 801,115
— Inventories —FE (527,049) (2,224,673)
— Restricted cash —ZRHIE S 95,016 (1,910,811)
— Trade receivables —EUWE 5 IR (2,293,073) (1,019,396)
- Prepayments, deposits and —-BRARE ek

other receivables H b U SRR (25,099,015) 7,067,289
— Amounts due from former Directors —JEW AT FEEFIE 31,709,996 (24,099,781)
— Purchase of financial assets —BEBERAFETA

at fair value through profit or loss BamseBEE (36,928,800)  (147,796,203)
— Segregated trust bank balances —BYERERFAR (10,164,747) (8,205,583)
- Trade payables —ENE S HIE 1,124,738 6,875,065
— Other payables and accruals — H b B~ 5B R T 3RIB (2,355,828) (7,216,244)

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



< - f:
N i
Lo i
Al

| ) i
CoNsoOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CasH FLows

HFERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

2015 2014
—E—hfF —E—OF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I 7T
Cash used in operations LEFHHZEASE (49,284,950) (171,225,374)
Income tax paid (1,687,440) (1,069,657)
Interest received 5,158,875 895,284
Net cash used in operating activities &4 ;EFEE A ZIRNLFHE (45,813,515)  (171,399,747)
Cash flows from investing activities RZEHABHEHEE
Payments for investments in associates AIEE 2R (2,365,860) (24,175,538)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiary B AKI B A 7 2 35 - (18,207,283)
Purchases of property, BEMZE HENLRE
plant and equipment (3,956,532) (3,657,435)
Proceeds from disposal of a property, HEWZE #E N &
plant & equipment el 135,000 -
Net increase in loans and receivables B 7% N JE U 1 I8 18 hiE (& (2,090,725) (17,427,620)
Dividend received 12,541,168 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) & FSHESE (FH)Z
investing activities 4,263,051 (63,467,876)
Cash flows from financing activities FIZEHAEHEKEE
Proceeds from issuance of BITEBRMA
ordinary shares - 464,099,180
Payments for share issue expenses A& 1D 31T B S 2 A 3K - (9,624,245)
Repayments of bank borrowings RITERZERK (1,883,668) (1,828,411)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RIZ;EEN (EIFH),
financing activities EEZREFE (1,883,668) 452 646,524
Net (decrease)/increase in cash He&RIRE%EEIER
and cash equivalents (D) EnigE (43,434,132) 217,778,901
Cash and cash equivalents FolzHekReEEIER
at beginning of year 292,073,216 77,090,712
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEH B
changes (7,148,974) (2,796,397)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEERESEEER
at end of year 27 241,490,110 292,073,216

BENKEKREEERDA
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION
First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in (i) provision of the precious
metals spot trading and brokerage services in the PRC, (i)
provision of securities and futures contracts trading services
and wealth management services in Hong Kong, (iii) trading
and principal investments in the PRC and Hong Kong, (iv)
provision of a trading platform, (v) research, exploration and
development of the student safety network project and the
electronic student card in the PRC, and (vi) provision of stock
information and research services through the internet network
in the PRC.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
is situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA
Building, No.64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, while the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The Company has selected
Hong Kong dollar as its presentation currency as management
considered it is more beneficial to the users of the consolidated
financial statements. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on 15 March 2016.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of Stock Exchange
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
(“CQO”"). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

Amendments to Defined benefit plans:

HKAS 19 Employee contributions
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

The impact of the application of these standards is
set out below.

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the
complexity of accounting for certain contributions
from employees or third parties under defined
benefit plans. When the contributions are eligible
for the practical expedient provided by the
amendments, a companies is allowed to recognise
the contributions as a reduction of the service
cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered, instead of including them in calculating
the defined benefit obligation. The amendments do
not have an impact on these financial statements as
the Group do not have any defined benefit plans.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them,
HKAS 24, Related party disclosures has been
amended to expand the definition of a “related
party” to include a management entity that provides
key management personnel services to the reporting
entity, and to require the disclosure of the amounts
incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management
entity. These amendments do not have an impact
on the group’s related party disclosures as the
group does not obtain key management personnel
services from management entities.

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+-A=+—RAIFE
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A MWk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of
accounts and director’s reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the GEM Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended
with reference to the new CO and to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly, the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2015 have been changed to comply
with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2014 and presented or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statement based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or GEM Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended GEM
Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BT R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+-A=+—RAIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
(b)  New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Amendments to Accounting for acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 interests in joint operations’

Amendments to Disclosure initiative’
HKAS 1

Amendments to Clarification of acceptable
HKAS 16 and methods of depreciation and
HKAS 38 amortisation’

Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer plants’
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 (2011) Financial Statements’
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)
(b)  New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and its
HKAS 28 associate or joint venture®
Amendments to Investment entities: Applying
HKFRS 10, the consolidation exception’
HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BT R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2.1

(continued)

(®)

New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Key requirements of HKFRS are described as
follows:

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and liabilities.
The complete version of HKFRS 9 replaces
most of the guidance in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9
retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for fair value through
profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss with the
irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income. There is now a new expected credit
losses model that replaces the incurred loss
impairment model used in HKAS 39. For
financial liabilities, there were no changes to
classification and measurement, except for
the recognition of changes in own credit risk
in other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for
hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright
line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an
economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the
“hedged ratio” to be the same as the one
management actually use for risk management
purposes. Contemporaneous documentation
is still required but is different to that currently
prepared under HKAS 39.
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

®)

New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application
permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
9 in the future may have significant impact on
the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding
the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The amendments are
not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not used
a revenue based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

®)

New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements about
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s
contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised
when a customers obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ability to direct the use
and obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces HKAS 18 Revenue and
HKAS 11 Construction contracts and the related
interpretations on revenue recognition for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
and earlier application is permitted. The Group is
assessing the impact of HKAS 15.

There are no other new and revised HKFRSs that
are not effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquire and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Business combinations (continueqd)

The Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognized in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Business combinations (continueqd)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognized in accordance with HKAS 39 in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not re-measured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognized and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognized directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Intra-Group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

()

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions - that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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NOTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognized in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognizes the amount adjacent
to “share of profit of associates” accounted for equity
method in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognized in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the steering committee that makes strategic
decisions.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HKS), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BT R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income within
“finance costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
within “other income and gains’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE—ZT—HF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
consolidated statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences
are reattributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognized in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BT OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE—ZT—HF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Land Over the term of leases
Buildings 25 years

Leasehold improvements Over the term of leases
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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NoTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7
(a)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

BEEBEME (&)

2.7 BREE(#F)

70

(b) Trading rights b) EE
The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility AEBZEBEEERNIE
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange BRMXAEBEERHERS
and on the Hong Kong Future Exchange Limited. The FIBERRARAIEECAER
trading rights are carried at cost less accumulated R - B BN TR K AR
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. RETEHE N AR EREET

(c) Software (c) EH#
The software has a finite useful life and is carried at B AHR - WIR AR
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. R NORES R #
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line HEREGEATE 8T
method to allocate the cost of software over its fh 5T Al A H RS 2106
estimated useful life from 5 to 10 years. A9 B B RS ©

(d) Contractual customer relationships (d) BHEFFHIF
Contractual customer relationships acquired in a REBEHEDNE2EHE
business combination are recognized at fair value FPRAREBRARKERR A

at the acquisition date. The contractual customer
relationship have an indefinite useful life because
of the unspecified contractual period and the fund
school safety products are expected to be used
continuously. Such intangible asset is not amortized
but tested for impairment annually individually (at
the cash-generating unit level). The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continue to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective bases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held-for-trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE—ZT—HF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHRME£Z
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued)

29 &RMEE(£)

Classification (continued)

(b)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”
and “deposits and other receivables” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within
“Other income and gains” in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amount and there is an intention to settled
on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment losses is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method for the commodities finished
goods and the weighted average method for the student
cards and school safety products. The cost of finished
goods is arrived at purchase cost. It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amount due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in ordinary
the course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE—ZT—HF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at Fair value through profit and loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-A=+—RHIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not
recognized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.

2.20

TEE

FTBURILE (&)

BN RBEFRSH (&)
EBEFTFH (7)

SNERENEE
TS B BRI ) Kok
BRRCREMELE R Z/ET
RRE HEELHEHRAGRN
FERBRT - AN E R 26 B e
HEBRIREMEFZRHTKA
AT RETA AT T8 R % 2R B¢ B AlURR S o —
RimE - ARBEEEEFEBE QR
ZERERED -2 E R HEM
TARK B BE DRI A 1B R A5 2K
BEER R T ez
NA)Z AR RN P EE A FERR AR
EREZEERECHARRE-

EEEHEZHEAUERRRER
BN RERERENEHEN
FERBAVBE - 7T @ LRIEPTISTH
BEERBBENKE AR LEE
RAZWEMELEZ A HMRE R
E®-

]

B F B AR AT R R A
ST EERNBMERAER
HAREREMSHEERAR
W R R — TR B R T B BB X
BEERFBREEFERHEBROTR
FERTE B FTEH - RIA KR
RS EELBEIAREH-

BENRAKREEERAA
—Z-0FFR

79



80

NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWWk M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE—ZT—HF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully within
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2014: Nil).

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognized over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognizes the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Share-based compensation (continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognizing the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognized over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below:

Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognized on a trade date basis.

(@)

Commission income from precious metal brokerage
is recognized on a trade date basis.

Service income are recognized when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) Realized gains or losses on spot trading on precious
metal contracts are recorded on a trade date basis
whilst unrealized fair value gains or losses are
recognized by translating the contract amounts at
the prices ruling at the end of each reporting period.

(e) Realized fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst
unrealized fair value gains or losses are recorded on
change in fair value on the reporting period.

() Interest income is recognized using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognized using

the original effective interest rate.

(9) Dividend income is recognized when the right to

receive payment is established.

(h)  Revenue from sales of goods is recognised upon
transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed to the

customers.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair
value interest rate risk, and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk

(1)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from
the sales or purchase by operating units
in currency other than the unit’s functional
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the
Group’s revenue and costs of the operating
units are denominated in the HK$ and RMB,
with most of the group’s monetary assets,
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$
and RMB. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and investments
in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flow generated from business transactions
locally. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from trading of listed equity securities
which are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. To manage its price risk arising
from the investments in equity securities, the
Group diversifies its portfolio. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the
quoted market prices of the trading securities
had been 5% higher or lower while all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s net
profit for the year would increase or decrease
by approximately HK$10,098,000 (2014:
HK$9,884,000) as a result of changes in fair
value of securities held for trading.
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3.

—hFEtZA=t—RALFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits and borrowings which carry prevailing
market interest rates. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cashflow
interest rate risk. The directors considered that
the Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
Group’s cashflow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable bank deposits and rate
borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, if interest
rates on the bank deposits and borrowings
had been decreased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 would decrease
and increase by approximately HK$42,000 and
HK$52,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group
is exposed to the fair value interest rate risk
relates to the loans and receivables. However,
the Directors consider the repayable term of
the loans and receivables is within one year,
therefore, the fair value interest rate risk is
immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit
risk of the counterparty is managed at an early
stage and sufficient provision is made for possible
defaults. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, loans and receivables and amounts
due from former Directors, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has certain concentrations of credit risk as
approximately 31% (2014: 38%) and 89% (2014:
94%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors respectively. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had a
borrowings with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$10,494,000 (2014: HK$12,378,000) (Note 30).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBREMER (&
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBREKER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) REELELE (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEESRABERRE AN
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual FARIE A O RITIRA R B
undiscounted payments, was as follows: HIRmT:
On demand Between Between Total Total
or within 1and 2 2and5 Over undiscounted carrying
1 year years years 5 years cash flow amount
BEX IR
PE 1226 2F55 5t REREEE BREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2015 —E-I1F
Trade payables T E 5 5B 16,681,530 = = - 16,681,530 16,681,530
Other payables and ~ E A BN FUAK
accruals JEF IR 4,388,082 - - - 4,383,082 4,388,082
Borrowings (Note) fE (M) 11,327,654 - - - 11,327,654 10,494,013
2014 —2-mF
Trade payables R ESHE 15,556,792 - - - 15,556,792 15,556,792
Other payables and ~ EAEFUAR
accruals JEET R 6,743,910 - - - 6,743,910 6,743,910
Borrowings (Note) GRS 13,557,075 - - - 13557075 12,377,681
Note: BEE:

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity
analysis. At 31 December 2015, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of the bank loans amounted to HK$11,327,654
(2014: HK$13,557,075). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be
repaid over a period of 5 (2014: 6) years in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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NoTes To THE CoNsoLIDATED FIN

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the
SFC and are required to comply with certain minimum
capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt (including current and
non-current liabilities but excluding current or deferred
income tax liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (including share capital and premium, reserves,
accumulated losses and non-controlling interests as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).

ANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.2 Capital management (continued)
During 2015, the Group’s strategy was to maintain the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio within 50%, which was
unchanged from 2014. The debt-to-adjusted capital
ratios as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as

MEEmER (&)

3.2

EXEE(Z)

AEBE-_T-RFEESFTZ
T-MEHRE - BIRRBESYS
AR L R FIES0% A © 10
—E-hAFR-FT-WE+ZA

follows: =T —HZEBHEHBERANL
EOT:

2015 2014

—E—A%F —E—F

HK$ HK$

#IT BT

Total debt BE 31,563,625 34,678,383
Less: Bank balances and cash, including J& : SR17 48 MIR &
bank trust accounts (Note 27) BIRIRITER

BEP (M5E27) (265,901,547) (306,319,906)

Net debt B FE (234,337,922) (271,641,523)

Total equity EmBE 730,716,364 801,259,650

Adjusted capital LR A 730,716,364 801,259,650

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BT A AR AR A & N/A FiE N/A 7~ & F

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AE{EZMGE:T

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& Bt iR Rk Mt e

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

3.

—hFEt-A=t—RLEE

MBERER (2)
3.3 AF{EZMHE (&)

BESREALIFREITER
ZHEBEBEZEARE (&
FERZBARE) (£=
ARx) e

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
@t -1 - pt ] 5=
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2015 R-F-1F
+=-A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value & AFEFFABZEZ
through profit or loss SREE (M5He4d)
(note 24)
- securities held for trading —H{EEEZE 5 201,969,810 201,969,810 - -
Contingent consideration ~ [EUR L AR (B
receivable (note 20) (F5E20) 31,511,100 - - 31,511,100
At 31 December 2014 —ME
+-A=1+—H
Financial assets at fair value & AFEFABZZ
through profit or loss SRAE (Miod)
(note 24)
- securities held for trading —#1EBEEH 197,682,520 197,682,520 - -
Contingent consideration ~ [EUR L AR (B
receivable (note 20) (Ff5E20) 4,232,422 - - 4,232,422
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were RZE—RERZZT—NF
no transfers of fair value measurements between +ZA=+—H8 " F—HX
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of f,i&ZF'aﬁI[?%ﬁTﬂ—J F1E
Level 3. rEER BE=ZRINET
EEEYNEE =T
Please refer to Note 20 for the changes in Level 3 FREZEZE_ZT—RER_Z

instruments for the years ended 31 December 2015

and 2014.
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BAFsE b EE ()
34 SMIANE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.4 Financial instruments by category

94

2015 2014
—T-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets as per consolidated MBRAREZeREE
statement of financial position
Statutory deposits and other assets EEEReEMNEMWERE 2,304,395 6,106,735
Contingent consideration receivable JEUT L AR (B 31,511,000 4,232,422
Trade receivables JEUE 5 3K18 9,800,843 7,507,770
Deposits and other receivables e L H M EWRFIE 32,565,452 7,549,318
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEGFAERZZ
profit or loss TREE 201,969,810 197,682,520
Loans receivables JE U B 3R 19,518,345 17,427,620
Amounts due from former Directors FEU AT T E S 5018 831,419 32,541,415
Bank balances and cash, WITHEBRNIAS
including restricted cash (BREZEHES) 267,717,342 308,230,717
566,218,606 581,278,517
Financial liabilities as per consolidated EBkRHEZ BB E
statements of financial position
Trade payables JERTE 558 16,681,530 15,556,792
Other payables and accruals H {th A 5008 M FEET FRIA 4,388,082 6,743,910
Borrowings & 10,494,013 12,377,681
31,563,625 34,678,383
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors,

including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7. The
recoverable amounts of CGU have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets
other than goodwill

The Group has significant intangible assets. The
Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
intangible assets, in order to ascertain the amount
of amortization charges for each reporting period.

Impairment of intangible assets other than
goodwill

The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible
assets other than goodwill have suffered any
impairment in accordance with accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. If the recoverable amount of
an intangible asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
intangible asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The assessment of the recoverable amount
requires the use of estimates and assumptions.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EXEsHhsrRHER (=2)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 EXEiHEsrRBR (&)
(continued)
(d) Impairment of trade and other receivables (d) [EE SRR MEK
I& % 5

(e)

()

The Group’s management determines the
impairment of trade and other receivables on
a regular basis. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and current market
conditions. Management reassesses the impairment
of trade and other receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment of interests in associates
Determining whether interests in associates are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of the interests in associates, which
represent the present values of estimated future
cash flows from those investments, discounted at
the original effective interest rates. The carrying
amount of interests in associates as at 31
December 2015 is HK$47,942,898.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of
property, plant and equipment

The Group has significant property, plant and
equipment. The Group is required to estimate the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to ascertain the amount of depreciation charges for
each reporting period.

The useful lives are estimated at the time of
purchase of these assets after considering business
developments and the Group’s strategies. The
Group performs annual reviews to assess the
appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
Such review takes into account any unexpected
adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results,
negative industry and economic trends. The Group
extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes
impairment provisions according to the results of the
review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)
(g) Income taxes

(h)

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination are made.

Business combination

The Group acquired a subsidiary which engaged
in trading of electronic student cards in the PRC.
Please refer to Note 35 for details of the business
combination.

The Group assessed the business combination in
accordance with HKFRS and concluded that the
acquisition constitutes a business combination.
To account for the assets and liabilities acquired,
significant judgment was required in determining
the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EXEsHhsrRHER (=2)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 EXEiHEsrRBR (&)
(continued)
(i)  Fair value of contingent consideration () ERAREZLFE
receivable
The Directors of the Group use their judgment AEBEEZEEHERIARE
in selecting appropriate valuation techniques for BESBMHERMERAR
contingent consideration receivable. A probability L2 HE - HET B AR
model was used by market practitioners, has been B AVFERDERABMEE
applied for estimating the fair value of contingent BIAEfEE - B HARE
consideration receivable. The estimation of fair Z A EME T E R
values of the contingent consideration receivables R FETRAEE R EE
are derived after taking into account the input ERBE - RFERFEAD
and parameters, such as the discount rate, range AR AE -
of profits shortfall and its probabilities and the
Company’s shares at the end of reporting period.
() Share-based payments G) KRB BEEZ 1

Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which depends on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
also requires determination of the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the share option or appreciation right, volatility
and dividend vyield and making assumptions about
them. The Group uses a binomial model for new
share options scheme to measure the fair value
of equity-settled transactions with employees at
the grant date. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 34.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s
accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Determining whether the interests in &% (&
) BES XSG HBIDERLF (transliterated as
First China (Liaoning) Agricultural Products
Trading Centre Company Limited) is an
associate or a joint arrangement

The Group holds 45% of the voting rights of the
interests In BEE(EHE)EEMXHFLERAF
(transliterated as First China (Liaoning) Agricultural
Products Trading Centre Company Limited) which is
structured as a limited company. The management
has assessed the level of the influence that the
Group has on it and determined that the Group has
significant influence, not the joint control because
of the board representation and contractual terms.
Consequently, the interests in B3 (E®E)EER
T HHRLERRG (transliterated as First China
(Liaoning) Agricultural Products Trading Centre
Company Limited) is classified as an associate.

Determining the basis on impairment made on
the interests in associates

Due to the commodities trading policies review
conducted by the government of Qianhai, there
was a temporary suspension on the business
operation of the associated company. Although the
management of the Group considers the associate
will continue its business after the new industry
policies introduced, the impairment has been made
on the interests in associates based on the present
value of the of the associate’s assets and liabilities
realized in case such policies has not announced in
forthcoming one year.
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5.

REVENUE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

EEW
AREBEARFENEXZBONET

2015 2014
—E-hfF — 4
HK$ HK$
I BT
Commission income from securities and FBELBELLASBA
futures brokerage 2,287,814 1,621,449
Commission income from cEBELAESBA
precious metals brokerage 8,315,753 13,464,606
Spot trading profits on TEBREEH
precious metals contracts, net X%W EFE 11,249,982 22,792,383
Trading of electronic student cards and HEBTEEEK
school safety products REZ 2 Em 2,102,875 2,603,689
Interest income from clients RERPZFBHA 971,533 381,593
Net gains/(loss) on trading of securities BEXESF WG
(E18) F@ 4,293,289 (803,239)
Income from provision of RETEEBRBE ZEA
wealth management services - 8,749
Consultancy fee income BHRERABKA 20,786,046 547,362
50,007,292 40,616,592

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

In prior financial years, the Group was organized into seven
operating divisions and each of the operating divisions
represented an operating and reportable segment: (1) provision
of brokerage and securities margin financing services; (2)
precious metals spot trading and brokerage; (3) trading of
electronic student cards and school safety products; (4) trading
and principal investments; (5) provision of wealth management
services; (6) provision of stock information and research
services; and (7) provision of a trading platform. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the chief operation decision maker
no longer considered the provision of a trading platform as an
operating and reportable segment. As a result, six operating
and reportable segments were identified by the Executive
Directors.
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6.

NOTES ToO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B %R R M EE

—hFEt-A=t—RLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HEER(EF)
The segment information of the reportable segments for the BHE_ZT-—hF+T-_A=1T—HLFE
year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows: ZARED T2 DEERLT
Brokerage Trading of Provision of
and electronic stock
securities Precious student Provision of information
margin  metals spot cards and  Trading and wealth and
financing  trading and school safety principal management research
services brokerage products  investments services services Total
BERES HEEF
RESHME BLERE SLEERKE EER MEERE E&AR
k%  RBREL RRER BERE 43 RS @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT bt ET ET AL o AT
Segment revenue from MREPHHBA
external customers 3,259,347 19,565,735 2,102,875 4,293,289 - 20,786,046 50,007,292
Segment results PEEE (1,529,070) 4525441  (57,921,198)  (29,409,044) - 12,976,407  (71,357,464)
Net unallocated expenses FAREZFE (27,313,584)
Sundry income HERA 1,701,082
Finance costs BEKK (344,576)
Interest income FlE A 4,187,342
Share of profit of associate JE{REE &\ A1 FE 36,748,757
Loss before income tax BESHAER (56,378,443)
Income tax expense FEREY (4,669,317)
Loss for the year FREE (61,047,760)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. OBER(F)
The segment information of the reportable segments for the BHE_Z-—NF+_A=1+T—HILFE
year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows: ZAMEDHL L AHBERAT
Brokerage Trading of
and electronic Provision of
securities Precious student Provision of stock
margin metals spot cards and Trading and wealth information
financing trading and school safety principal management and research
services brokerage products investments services services Total
frk HEET b
FHRE BESERE BEERRE EER HEER REEAR
SRERK RHREE ZREM BERE R HERS st
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B o A A BT
Segment revenue from IRERHHRA
external customers 2,003,042 36,256,989 2,603,689 (803,239) 8,749 547,362 40,616,592
Segment results PHEE (2,442,414) 9,290,299 (7,400,430) 46,133,146 7,984 (7,560,168) 38,028,367
Net unallocated expenses REFE (29,156,918)
Sundry income A 27,199,043
Gain on bargaining purchase [T 74,145,459
Finance costs A (399,844)
Interest income FEKA 8,955,325
Share of profit of associate EEBEDRAFE 1,594,693
Profit before income tax BRI EHANE 120,366,125
Income tax expense ERRAY (3,147,706)
Profit for the year ERFE 117,218,419
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December HE-_Z—RAF+-A=1t—"HIEE
2015 is as follows: ZEMOHERMT
Brokerage Trading of
and electronic Provision of
securities Precious student Provision of stock
margin  metals spot cardsand  Trading and wealth  information
financing  trading and school safety principal managements and research
services brokerage products  investments services services  Unallocated Total
LR HEEY 4
EHRE EEERE SEERKE BER HEEE REEAR
SHERE XBREL R2ER BERS BR% iR RHE by
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET AL EL T EL ET L EL
Addition to property, plant nE BERZERE
and equipment - - 3,775,072 150,000 - 3,371 28,089 3,956,532
Depreciation and amortization 7 & k& & 20,971 853,381 4,324,117 313,860 - 358,968 1,664,373 7,535,670
Impairment of intangible assets 7 & E & - - 93,191,960 - - - - 93,191,960
Change in fair value of contingent BRI ANREZ ATEES
consideration receivable - - 27,278,678 - - - - 27,278,678
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 Dece

mber 2015 HE=ZT—

6. SEWEH (&)

hAFE+ZRA=t—HLFE

Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BHE_Z-—NF+_A=1+T—HILFE
2014 is as follows: ZEMASHERMT
Trading of
Brokerage electronic Provision of
and securities Precious student Provision of stock
margin metals spot cards and Trading and wealth information
financing tradingand  school safety principal  managements  and research
services brokerage products investments services services Unallocated Total
RS HEBT i
BHRE  EEBEE BEZRNE EER HEEE  REEAR
SRHARK L5 RER Z2ER EERE R HRRE KR &5
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT T AT AT BT BT BT AT
Addition to property, plant nE BERZERE
and equipment - 370,022 4,384,239 - - 7,267 46,015 4,807,543
Addition to intangible assets BREERE - - 244471500 - - - - 244,471,500
Depreciation and amortization NEREH 32,420 1,302,004 1,149,487 16,980 - 1,799,206 2,200,933 6,501,320
Change in fair value of contingent ~~ EREAREZ ATFELE
consideration receivable - - (8,018,240) - - - - (8,018,240
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2015 HE-Z-—RAFR-ZFE—NF+=A
and 2014 are as follows: =+— EE’U’\‘EQF&ELQHT
Segment assets 2015 2014
DEEE —E¥—-1fF — P4
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Brokerage and securities margin R R EHFRE
financing services SHE RS 56,152,709 44,268,840
Precious metals spot trading and brokerage H&BEER S KELL 22,830,383 23,365,846
Trading of electronic student cards and HEETELR
school safety products REZZESW 188,573,243 299,061,284
Trading and principal investments BEERBERE 216,716,425 221,961,043
Provision of stock information and REREENRARRSE
research services 85,343,014 38,149,439
Provision of a trading platform REZX5¥4E - 25,236,261
569,615,774 652,042,713
Unallocated Ko B 232,650,929 248,006,720
Consolidated assets FeEE 802,266,703 900,049,433
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. SEWEH (&)

Segment liabilities 2015 2014
SEBEE —E—AF —E-AF
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Brokerage and securities margin K M BHIRE
financing services S RLE AR TS 27,966,176 16,691,352
Precious metals spot trading and brokerage E&BEER 5 KL 1,403,274 4,883,404
Trading of electronic student cards and HEEFEAEFE
school safety products REZ2E S 33,137,316 58,967,296
Trading and principal investments EERAERE 194,075 43,834
Provision of wealth management services REMEEERSG 25,579 25,579
Provision of stock information and REREENRATRS
research services 337,867 645,182
63,064,287 81,256,647
Unallocated R BL 8,486,052 17,533,136
Consolidated liabilities meEBaRE 71,550,339 98,789,783

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, statutory deposits and other
assets, contingent consideration receivable, inventories, trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, other
payables and accruals, current income tax payables and

deferred income tax liabilities.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

DHEEETZEEYME BERRE-
BREE LERENEMBEE BK
FARE FE BREZFREREAM
e IR R E 7 B A FEF AR
B EREEARRITERRLRE -

DHEBEIERRENEZRA  Hit
FERRIENEER BB HMEHR
BB HARE-

AEEETERFERTEEE -

2015 2014
—F¥—1hfF —T—-mE
HK$ HK$
AT BT

Revenue W 25
Hong Kong BB 7,552,636 849,749
The PRC s 42,454,656 39,766,843
50,007,292 40,616,592
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue from external customers are allocated based on the
country in which the customer is located.
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SERER (&

KEIBEPEEPAEBRRE D -

2015 2014
—E—A%F —E—F
HK$ HK$
I BT
Total assets BEEHEE
Hong Kong BB 450,189,223 490,728,721
The PRC A 352,077,480 409,320,712
802,266,703 900,049,433
Interest in associates are allocated based on the location of REERR 2 ERREBE D ME
operations, other assets are allocated based on where the thEEREEMEME 5 -
assets are located.
2015 2014
—E—-AfF —E—F
HK$ HK$
I BT
Capital expenditure BXMX
Hong Kong B 345,223 42,440
The PRC M 3,611,309 249,236,603
3,956,532 249,279,043

Capital expenditure is allocated on where the fixed assets are
located and intangible assets are in use.

Information about major customers

As at 31 December 2015, one of the customers located from
The PRC accounted for 10% or more of total revenue in the
amount of HK$19,905,079 (2014: none).

BEARXREEEEMEMNRETLEE

EREE D -

EFREFRZEH

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H —4&%
BT S IEAKA10%IA £ Z
W A4 %8 519,905,07958 7T (ZE— 1

FE)
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7.

OTHER INCOME AND NET (LOSS)/GAINS 7. HtAR (BE) WiEFE
2015 2014
—¥-1%F —E-NF
HK$ HK$
#BIT BT
Other income Hib
CCASS fee income PREZRGEAIRA 42,160 30,829
Handling fee income FEBIA 66,152 199,404
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERF B WA 323,632 84,685
Other interest income! H A F B A 3,863,710 8,870,640
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEETEEEKE 135,000 -
Dividend income i B WA 3,252,448 -
Sundry income? MU A 1,701,082 27,199,043
9,384,184 36,384,601
Other (loss)/gains Hih (5518) e
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAER S
through profit or loss (Note 24) eREE (Hik24)
— Fair value (losses)/gains on —EEXAZ2AFEE
securities trading (B8 M= (32,641,510) 49,886,317
— Exchange gain —E N = 559,689 94,968
(32,081,821) 49,981,285
(22,697,637) 86,365,886

! Included in the other interest income of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 was the HK$496,120 (2014: HK$8,441,634) results
from the court judgments on interest compensations from the Company’s
former Directors. Please refer to Note 26 for details of the court
judgments.

2 Included in the sundry income of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 were the HK$26,924,441 results from the court
judgments on the dividend compensations from the Company’s former
Directors (Note 26) and the reimbursement of the legal fee incurred by the
Company for the two former Directors in previous years.
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FINANCE COSTS 8. MEAME
2015 2014
—¥-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings not A ER A B R 45 R B E 5T
wholly repayable within one year from the —FREHEEEES
end of the reporting period but contain a JEEREE KGR
repayment on demand clause: IRITERZFERAX 344,576 399,844
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. MFTEBiE(EE) FE
2015 2014
—E-4fF —E—OF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTS AT (E518)
has been arrived at after charging: AME - BB T IE
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A B 5
- audit services —EETIRT 450,000 400,000
- other services — E b AR 75 190,000 20,000
Foreign exchange difference, net M 5 =R FE 331,121 2,650
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEWEzLERHNAS
rented premises 8,121,733 5,626,352
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10. EE®AIMAX
2015 2014
—¥-1fF —E—OF
HK$ HK$
BT &I
Wages and salaries IERE® 31,935,969 27,010,071
Share options granted to BETESREE 2BRE
Directors and employees 5,103,117 6,578,039
Pension costs RIKE A
- defined contribution schemes — R G E 202,419 237,057
Employee benefits expenses, including EERMMAZ
Directors’ remuneration BIEEFHE 37,241,505 33,825,167
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11.
EMOLUMENTS

EFRIETHAENE

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_F—AF+-A=+—HILEE

108

Salaries,
allowances, Employer’s
and benefits contributions
in kind to pension
Name of Director Note Fees (Note (vii)) scheme Total
e 2R
BENAE EheHiz
EEpE Pt & ik ( B (vii) ) EEHR @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET bonn BT bon
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Wang Wenming ITXHRLE (i) - 2,411,905 15,000 2,426,905
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun TRWEE (i) - 1,707,936 15,000 1,722,936
Mr. Wang Jiawei TRELE
(Chairman and Chief Executive) (EERTBBH) - 1,000,000 18,000 1,018,000
Mr. Haroon Hasan Haroon Hasan’t & (iv) 414,286 24,780 - 439,066
Mr. Chen Li BOxE (v) 1,200,000 2,336,382 - 3,536,382
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBLLT (ii) - 250,000 7,500 257,500
Non-executive Directors EHTEE
Mr. Liu Runtong et b - - - -
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr.7t & - 3,276,826 - 3,276,826
Independent non-executive BIFRTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHE 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Tony | Tong BELE ) 90,755 - - 90,755
Mr. Li Jianxing TEOEE 121,371 - - 121,371
Professor Chen Shu Wen TR i S 120,000 - - 120,000
2,076,412 11,007,829 55,500 13,139,741
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-A=+—RHIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. ESEREETBAEMNE (&F)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z—HOFT_A=1T—HLFE
Salaries,
allowances, Employer’s
and benefits  contributions
in kind to pension
Name of Director Note Fees (Note (vi)) scheme Total
He ORMR
EMFla  BREFEZ
EEMA ik ik (B & (vil) ) EEHH st
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT AT
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Wenming (Chairman) FXHEE(ER) - 1,200,000 16,750 1,216,750
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive) ~ ZRR¥T %4 (1THEH) - 1,200,000 16,750 1,216,750
Mr. Wang Jiawei TRELE - 300,000 12,000 312,000
Ms. Song Binyang NI R (i) 83,507 - - 83,507
Mr. Haroon Hasan Haroon Hasan%t 4 (iv) 363,334 1,296,721 4,500 1,664,555
Mr. Chen Li BRAO&E (v) 212,903 2,193,618 - 2,406,521
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Mr. Liu Runtong ABEREE - - - -
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 5t & (vi) - 3,087,700 - 3,087,700
Independent non-executive BIFRTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHR 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Tony | Tong BEEE 125,000 - - 125,000
Mr. Li Jianxing FRTEE 120,000 - - 120,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen TR S 120,000 - - 120,000
1,154,744 9,278,039 50,000 10,482,783
Notes: B sE -
0] Resigned on 22 September 2015, 0] RZE—RAFNAZ+ZBHEE-
(ii) Appointed on 1 August 2015. (ii) RZZE—RAFNA—RABZEE-
(i)  Resigned on 11 September 2014. (i) RZT—WFLAT+—HEE-
(iv)  Appointed on 11 September 2014 and resigned on 4 February 2015. vy RZE-—NFAAT—BHEZELTR=-F
—HFE-RBMBERT-
(v) Appointed on 28 October 2014. (v) RZZE—WFE+AZ+\AEZE-
(vii  Appointed on 22 September 2014. vy RZZE-—NFAAZ+tZHEZ({E-
(vi)  Benefits in kind include share options. During the year ended 31 Vi) EVAIEREERE-BHEZ-Z ﬁi )3‘4
December 2015 and 2014, 20,000,000 and 45,000,000 share options —E-NE+ZA=+—HILEFE"
with an aggregate fair value of HK$5,613,208 and HK$6,578,039 were B4 #£5,613,2087% JT 16,578, 089/%752
granted respectively by the Group to the Directors of the Company under 20,000,0001% 45,000,000 i A% #e FA A 52
the Company’s share option scheme. ERBEAQT 2 EBRESNEMEFARAE
R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

11.

12,

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2014 Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include five (2014: five) directors of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 11.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2014:
Nil).

INCOME TAX INCOME/(EXPENSE)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as
the Group incurred a tax loss for the year (2014: Nil). Taxation
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

11.

12.

13.

EFRIETHAEMNE (&

FRNAEEVERMEESZ TR
{EAR S| MBS sk i I R AN = B B 2 42 B
HEABBAEE (S —NE &) &
W TEREENERXREZRETAMS
ZE—OF E) -

AZmEHAL
FREAESEREEaHATBEBERS
(ZE—HF AB)EST BEZHE
E N

FRAAEELTERNREESHFALX
MHERMEERBRS B RN INBEARE
B RS RRERAE (—F
FE) o

FRgBilA, (FX)
EENEHRAFEREBELENR
BB 2T ERBEAEIER E16.5%
(ZZE—UF 165% )T E - BAAEEH
FNEEREMBEE BRI BERE
HEBFESRELBEBE(ZE—NF:
/) BINFB B IEIR AN E B ES AT
FEREFBEACHE RFEEGTIE
R EETE -

2015 2014
—E—-AhfF —E—OF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current income tax: BNERFT S 70
Current tax on profits for the year FEFE 2z BAAFEIE
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HR B EMREN 563,302 3,343,438
Deferred income tax (Note 31): EIEFTS R (KT &ES1) -
Current year KEE (19,191,975) (195,732)
Income tax (income)/expense FTig® (WA) /Fx (18,628,673) 3,147,706
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-A=+—RHIFE

INCOME TAX INCOME/(EXPENSE) (continued)

Under the current general provision of the PRC enterprise
income tax law and published tax circulars, deferred taxation
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on
unremitted earnings of a PRC associate of the Group at the
rate of 10%.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the withholding tax that would be
payable on unremitted earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries
of the Group amounting to approximately HK$7,213,874
(2014: HK$6,661,661). No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these temporary differences because
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of
these subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will
not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) as follows:

13.

@B~ (FX) (&)
RIBEFBEEEMETEZRIT —RIEX
RENEZBBBEK  CREEMBR
RPAAKE 2P B E QR 2 KE D
B AL10%.2 M REM 2 FEMBAE D
BT TR

RZE—RAFER-_ZFT—HWNF+=A
=t+t—H UARBEMBREFHA
EHZETHENMNBARZRELE
R EG M 2 BB ZE 47,218,874 7T
(20144 : 6,661,661/8 T ) E 1 IE T &
BEE AR AEBERENZEWE
NEZREWE BEEBMEHM 25t
B RERa] AR ED M ERZS
EBERRALRLCHBERE-

WIRAIATEBFIEH 16.5% (=%
— U 16.5% ) 5T A K E 2 BFTE
BT (B5R),/ FIBBE G 8126 & 3
TR

2015 2014
—E—h%F —E—OF
HK$ HK$
T T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrRpriSEiAT (E1E) A8 (79,676,433) 120,366,125
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax LHEBENSHE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZE—MF:16.5%)
FE 2 BIA (13,146,611) 19,860,410
Tax effects of: LATIEB 2B B2
— Different tax rates of subsidiaries —REMAEEREEZ
operating in other jurisdictions WEB ARz TR =X (7,486,848) 5,232,842
- Income not subject to tax — AR A (6,573,513) (47,483,244)
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  —FLELIE B 89 Al H008 2
& 1,120,476 16,847,405
— Others —H b 807,994 8,448,403
— Unused tax losses not recognized —KERZAREA
Mg E R 4,075,673 -
- Tax loss not allowable —NEFA] 2 BB EE 2,342,726 -
— Prior year’s tax losses utilized in this year —FABAZBAEE
Mg E R (4,089,450) -
— Utilization of deductible temporary — [ ABEHRER
differences previously not recognized AMBERER - 241,890
- Withholding taxes — TR 4,320,880 -
Income tax (income)/expense FTis®H (WA /X (18,628,673) 3,147,706
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. B (BR) &F
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per KARHREABEERERNREE (&
share attributable to owners of the Company are based on the B,/ BHTRIEATESIETE

following data:

2015 2014
—E—4fF —E—OF
HK$ HK$
I BT
(Loss)/profit (JE‘E‘TE)/ F17
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of basic and ARFTEEREARRK
diluted (loss)/earnings per share BE (E8) Bz
(B#E) /FH (62,850,046) 114,540,442
2015 2014
—¥-1fF —ZE—F
HK$ HK$
BT & TT
Number of shares BEEE
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—H—BZzBE#T
LB 6,498,958,120 4,458,960,120
Effect of warrant exercised EITERRER & - 170,684,932
Effect of new issues of share BITHRD & - 336,136,597
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BiEtEERER (FHE)
in issue for calculating basic (loss)/earnings & F| 2 B 17E @K
per share INHE ¥ 15 25 6,498,958,120  4,965,781,649
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the ~ ANA A EE X1 2] TR 1
Company’s share option scheme for nil mEZRTROZTE
consideration 1,975,987 2,089,837
Effect of deemed issue of warrant RREBERIEC BT HE - 391,790,387
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BtatE&R#ERF 2
in issue for calculating diluted earnings per & %17 & @ A% A0
share (Note) g8 (MFE) 6,500,934,107 5,359,661,873

"2 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-A=+—RHIFE

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14. Bk (B8B) B (&)
2015 2014
—T-1%f —T-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss)/earnings per share Bk (&BE) & (0.0097) 0.0231
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SRS (58) B (0.0097) 0.0214
Note: B &
The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HLEFENTRES
2015 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options and warrants EBREZAETEBRRARGHE-_T—AF+=
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2015 since their exercise would A=+—BIEFEZRITEBRERRREEET
result in a decrease in loss per share. FRITEgRSERERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M -HAREHE
Office
Plant and Land and Leasehold equipment Computer Motor

machinery buildings improvements and furniture equipment vehicles Total

BAE
HERSE  thREF BENERE  RERER B4 E RE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT

As at 1 January 2014 R-%-mE-A-H

Cost AR - 40,327,455 3,750,820 15,186,529 899,761 6,459,657 066,624,222
Accumulated depreciation 2iE - (4,704,869) (1,339,445)  (11,719,241) (849,795) (4,293,908)  (22,907,258)
Net book amount FHFE - 35,622,586 2,411,375 3,467,288 49,966 2,165,749 43,716,964

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-F-MF

+ZA=+-BLEE

Opening net book amount HUREFE - 35,622,586 2,411,375 3,467,288 49,966 2,165,749 43,716,964
Additions HRE 49,257 - 773,467 2,368,463 42,440 423,808 3,657,435
Additions from acquisition of BUENBARIZAE

subsidiary (Note 35) (Ft+£35) 478,802 - - 133,128 - 336,144 948,069
Currency translation difference ~ E¥ R HESH 6,273 - (50,140) (84,394) - (29,715) (157,976)
Disposals e - - - (3,511) - - (3,511)
Depreciation charge FERY (34,917)  (1,613,098)  (1,522,814) (1,817,279 (40,151) (585,626)  (5,613,885)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 499415 34,009,488 1,611,888 4,063,690 52,255 2,310,360 42,547,096

As at 31 December 2014 R-¥-ME+-A=+-H

Cost WA 638,274 40,327,455 4,438,435 17,392,893 942,201 7,143,663 70,882,921
Accumulated depreciation Zithh& (138,859) (6,317,967) (2,826,547)  (13,329,208) (889,946) (4,833,303)  (28,335,825)
Net book amount HEEE 499,415 34,000,488 1,611,888 4,063,690 52,255 2,310,360 42,547,096

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-F-1%

+ZRA=t+-BLEE
Opening net book amount BNEEFE 499,415 34,009,488 1,611,888 4,063,690 52,255 2,310,360 42,547,096
Additions RE 311,311 - 108,593 3,386,628 - 150,000 3,956,532
Currency translation difference & HAZEE (19,386) - (44,629) (132,646) - (74,462) (271,129)
Disposals and written off L& R - - - (57,354) - (12,977) (70,331)
Depreciation charge ERY (154,299) (1,613,098) (1,006,431) (1,912,752) (33,034) (731,499) (5,451,113)
Closing net book amount HREEEE 637,041 32,396,390 669,421 5,347,566 19,221 1,641,422 40,711,061
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-1%

+ZR=+-H
Cost KA 917,846 40,327,455 3,548,134 18,781,976 479,300 6,396,429 70,451,140
Accumulated depreciation e (280,805) (7,931,065) (2,878,713)  (13,434,410) (460,079) (4,755,007)  (29,740,079)
Net book amount RHFE 637,041 32,396,390 669,421 5,347,566 19,221 1,641,422 40,711,061
Note: B o
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, land and buildings in Hong Kong under RZTF-—RAFR-ZF—MOF+A=+—0H 1RIE
long lease with a carrying value of HK$32,396,390 (2014: HK$34,009,488) was REEAR BB A IREE 432,396,390/ T (=
pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group (Note 30). T — U4 134,009,488 ) 2 L MIEFE AIE

HIRAREE 2 RITRR (MFE30) -

"4 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z
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—hFEt-A=t—RLEE

16. B EE

Contractual
customer
Software Trading rights relationship Total
B XHE ANEFHR @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2014 R-ZF-NE-HF—H
Cost AR 8,586,847 3,224,000 - 11,810,847
Accumulated amortization and ZHEABERAE
impairment (8,586,847)  (3,223,998) ~ (11,810,845)
Net book amount REFE - 2 - 2
Year ended 31 December 2014 BEE-F-NEF
+ZH=+—-HILEE
Opening net book amount HREHE - 2 - 2
Additions from acquisition of BRENRBLRZAE
subsidiary (Notes (i), (ii) (BEEEG)~ i) 20,884,500 - 223587,000 244,471,500
Currency translation difference BRABRER 283,290 - 2,972,060 3,255,350
Amortization charge BT (887,435) - - (887,435)
Closing net book amount R EREFE 20,280,355 2 226,559,060 246,839,417
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-ME
+ZA=+-H
Cost AR 29,754,637 3,224,000 226,559,060 259,537,697
Accumulated amortization and ZEEERAE
impairment (9,474,282) (3,223,998) - (12,698,280)
Net book amount REFE 20,280,355 2 226,559,060 246,839,417
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-S-1f
+ZHA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount BUEEFE 20,280,355 2 226,559,060 246,839,417
Currency translation difference BRABRER (934,878) - (7,976,520 (8,911,398)
Amortization charge BT (2,084,557) - - (2,084,557)
Impairment (Notes (i) LB (FEE(i) - - (93,191,960)  (93,191,960)
Closing net book amount HEEmEE 17,260,920 2 125,390,580 142,651,502
As at 31 December 2015 RZ%-1%
+=A=+-H
Cost A 28,819,759 3,224,000 218,582,540 250,626,299
Accumulated amortization and A EERRE
impairment (11,558,839) (3,223,998) (93,191,960)  (107,974,797)
Net book amount REFE 17,260,920 2 125,390,580 142,651,502

The amortization charge for the year is presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income separately.

AERHERINGARaEMEE
WAREKABILZS -

BENKEKREEERDA
“E-AFFH

15



16

% K0 NWET

NoTes 1o THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the software represents X 2 i F
MRS F 24 V2.0 (Registration No.: 2013SR144807), X £RKRIKRE
BRHFEHM V2.0 (Registration No.:2013SR144929), X £ i 5 i IR
AU EHV2.0 (Registration No:2013SR145090) and 2.4G B JERFIDI
BiZE @ AR EE (Registration No:2014SR037656) with the estimated
useful life of 10 years. The valuation of the intangible assets in amount
of RMB17,000,000 (2014: RMB17,000,000), which is equivalent to
HK$20,109,810 (2014: HK$20,884,500).

The contractual relationships with customers are acquired through
the previous acquisition of AT RKE@EEHZ AR AR (transliterated
as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd) are assessed to be indefinite
useful lives because of the unspecified contractual period and the final
school safety products are expected to be used continuously. There is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group. The recoverable amount of the
contractual relationships with customers that has indefinite useful life is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

For the purpose of impairment testing at 31 December 2015 and 2014,
the contractual customer relationship has been allocated to a CGU
representing the operating activities of FII T X E@BE B R QR
(transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd). An impairment test
of this intangible asset was carried out by management based on value-in-
use calculation and with reference to business valuation conducted by an
independent professional valuer.

Based on the impairment test performed, an impairment of
RMB76,000,000, which is equivalent to HK$93,191,960 was made. In
year 2015, orders for electronic student cards have been holding up
because the navigating chips of electronic cards and devices has been
started to change to coordinate with the BeiDou Navigation Satellite
System (L} BEEMES) . FY M XEBEHEBR QA (transliterated
as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.) started in second half of year
2015 to solicit domestic made chipset manufacturers and is now
performing testing on the samples provided. Testing is expected to be
finished in the first half of year 2016. Profit guarantee from vendor of %
YK EBEHEEMR QA (transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology
Co., Ltd.) is not expected to be achieved as the technology may not
be advanced and the future competition in the industry is expected to
be increased. In this connection, impairment to the value of contractual
relationship with customers has to be made accordingly.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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(i)

(i

(ii)

16. WL EE (&
B 3 -

RZE-—RAFER-T—MF+=_A=+—
B S EXEBRTMNREFZEMHV2.0
(FEf 4% 5% : 2013SR144807) K EBXK
REERSFEE&R V2.0 (FEMM4ER:
2013SR144929) * X £ i i i iz 7% 49 uh X
V2.0 FEMARSR : 2013SR145090) F2.4G
BRRFIDHENMZ F M AR (MR -
2014SR037656) ' fh&t Al EAFEEATF -
W& E R HEAARK17,000,0007T (=
T — U4 AR #17,000,0007T) 1B E R
20,109,810/ 7T ( —Z — U 4F : 20,884,500
BIT) °

B2 ARSI RN
REBHUBZARARES AREETAD
FH MEEKRELZZERBEHGAIHEE
B BRFEREERERFH - ZEER
HeAAREELRSRASRYET LR
Bl MR BEABEREMFHZETS ZHN
EHRREREFITHIRKESEB=ZE
HIRERBEDR -

RR-_E-—RAFER-_ZT—NE+-_A=+—
HETRENRNS  ANBFEEE N
ZRFFITREBREAR QAL LEEE
ZHELELABEN -ERECRBEREES
BN 2EHBIESEGEMETEBEE
HtEREEEEITRERR -

BAETRENS ARARMELEESBEAAR
#76,000,0007T (18 & $93,191,960/% 7T )
ZRE-R-_ZT—AF HAEFRAREZ
BRNRERAREREERNES L E
EEMAGHA NEFEEBTETRK
IEe R RERBEBARAANR=ZT—H
FTEFERRSKEENF &SR ARE
HHBRHMERETIR AR AR
ZERNF ¥ FRENK - R R g
S50 B AT AR RITE B F BTG T B 18
moORNTREBBREAERARNE SR
HFEEREF HAER - F L AR ES
HEFZEHBEEEELRE.



b AN ive
NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-A=+—RHIFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(ii)

(continued)

The recoverable amount of the contractual relationships with customers
with indefinite useful life is determined based on value in use calculations
by preparing cash flow projections of the relevant CGU derived from the
most recent financial forecast approved by the management covering a
five year period. The projected cashflows have been updated to reflect
the effects of the preparation stage to change the navigating chips used
in the products mentioned in above paragraph. The growth rates and
discount rate are the key assumptions used by the Group to determine the
recoverable amount of the CGU.

The pre-tax discount rate applied to cashflow projections is 29.92%
(2014: 28.6%), which is arrived after the adjustment of the Weighted
Average Cost of Capital (“WACC”) to pre-tax rate and cashflows beyond
five-year period are extrapolated without considering any growth rate.
(2014: 3%). The discount rate used is based on market risk free interest
rates adjusted for inflation differentials and also include the debt premium,
market risk premium, specific risk on intangible assets, gearing corporate
tax rate and asset beta.

Based on the valuation report issued by an independent professional
valuer, the Group has recognised an impairment loss of approximately
RMB76,000,000 (equivalent to HK$93,191,960) on the contractual
relationship with customers arose on the acquisition of &3 A £ @
HAMRAA (transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.) for
the year ended 31 December 2015. No impairment loss was recognized
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

As the contractual relationship with customers has been reduced to its
recoverable amount of approximately RMB106,000,000, any adverse
change in the assumption used in the calculation of recoverable amount
would result in further impairment.

The Group has reviewed whether the contractual relationship with
customers continues to support its category of indefinite useful life
intangible asset at 31 December 2015. The management of the Group
is now considering if the useful life of the contractual relationship with
customers should be changed in coming year.

The trading rights as at 31 December 2015 represent two (2014: two)
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2014: one) trading right on
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”).
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17. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS

17. AERERHEMEE

2015 2014
—E¥—A%F —E—mF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company BEAEFREEFRRQA
Limited (“HKSCC") ([BBEE])
— Contribution fund deposit —-REESES 100,000 100,000
— Admission fee deposit —mBES 100,000 100,000
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ERBMERSFER AR
— Compensation fund deposit -BEE2ES 100,000 100,000
— Fidelity fund deposit —-BERESES 100,000 100,000
— Stamp duty deposit —HER RS 30,000 5,000
The Securities and Futures Commission of BEEBHFRPESH
Hong Kong EREZEw
— Deposits for responsible officers —-BEANBES 100,000 100,000
Shenzhen Qianhai First China International FINETE EE R M
Commodities Exchange Centre Limited RSB LERA G
- Reserve fund deposit —RHEESES 591,465 3,734,490
Sichuan Commodities Exchange P9I P 8 R 2 5 R
— Reserve fund deposit —FHEEsES 591,465 -
Guangdong Previous Metals Exchange BEREESE
Limited (“PMEC”) RSB LAERRATA
(BB %))
- Reserve fund deposit —RHEESES 591,465 1,867,245
2,304,395 6,106,735
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMBATIZ/E
2015 2014
—¥-AF —ET—-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost I LT  HRBAR 4,771,262 4,771,262
Less: Impairment loss recognized W TR (E B 1R 2) 2)
4,771,260 4,771,260

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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18. RMBATIZIRE (£&)
UWTER-_ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—HZ
KRAREENBRGIRE:

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

as at 31 December 2015:

Place of incorporation/

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind and place of share capital/ Interest
Name of legal entity operations registered capital held
R R R EBTRE/
2z EEEREN TREBREEDY dMRAHE  FAER
First China Financial British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 611,700 ordinary shares 100%
Holdings (BVI) Limited Limited liability company of US$1 each
First China Financial RBRAES ARAA REER 611,700/ & &
Holdings (BVI) Limited HEIZETZEER
Stockmartnet Limited Hong Kong, Securities trading in HK$3 100%
Limited liability company Hong Kong
TREARAAF BB BRAA REBREEREE 3BT
First China Securities Limited Hong Kong, Securities and futures HK$67,000,000 100%
Limited liability company brokerage and
securities margin
financing services in
Hong Kong
BEEESFBRAA BB BRAA REEREERR 67,000,000/ 7T
IS4 DA R 78 55
RECRERS
First China Processing Hong Kong, Provision of a trading HK$2 100%
Services Limited Limited liability company platform in Hong
Kong
First China Processing EE BRRA REAREZ ST A 2T
Services Limited
IFN-GT Financial Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited Limited liability company of US$1 each
IFN-GT Financial Holdings RBRAES ARAA REER REREE
Limited [EPA-$:1
First China Global Wealth Hong Kong, Provision of wealth HK$6,000,000 100%
Management Limited Limited liability company management
services in Hong
Kong
BERKENERDA BE BRAR REBRENE 6,000,0007% 7.
ERRH%

BENRAKREEERAA
“E-AFFH
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

18. RMIBATZIRE (&)

Principal activities Particulars of issued

establishment and kind and place of share capital/ Interest
Name of legal entity operations registered capital held
SR BRI E R EBTRE/
£ EEERE TREBREEDY dfRA#E  HEEG
First China Estates Company Hong Kong, Property holding HK$1 100%
Limited Limited liability company
BEEXBRRA BE BRAA RENE 187
Aceview International Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited liability company of US$1 each
HREBEERAA HERTEE BRAA REEZR IREBEREEIETZEBK
GoHi Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 35,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited liability company of US$1 each
GoHi Holdings Limited ABERUBE ERALF REER 35,000l BIREE
1ETZEBER
BEBHHHORI)AERRA  PRC, Provision of stock Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as First China Foreign wholly-owned information and of RMB40,000,000
Securities Consultancy enterprise research services
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) in the PRC
BEZHFFARINERRE  HE 2IERE RPBEREREE AR AMEXR
TR A K #40,000,0007C
RINERZHEERERAR  PRC, Investment holding Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Limited liability company and provision of RMB3,000,000
Sky Picture Culture of development
Communications Company and design of TV
Limited) (Note) programs and
artwork in the PRC
RYNEXRZECBEERRA HE FRAA RPBEREZR: AMERA
(PBaT) RERRAERHE AR %3,000,0007
e
FNEERTBEREBERLA  PRC, Development and Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Limited liability company sales of school of RMB7,000,000
First China School Safety safety products and
Network Technology Company electronic student
Limited) cards
AIEERZBERBERDE  HE FRAA HERHERE AMEXR
ZEEMR A K. #7,000,0007C
ETEEE

120
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

18. RMIBABZIRE (&)

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind and place of share capital/ Interest
Name of legal entity operations registered capital held
FEMAIL BRI B R BITRE
&1 EEERER TREBREEDY dfRA#E  HEEG
FNERBEBEMBERAOA PRC, Development and Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Limited liability company sales of software of RMB10,000,000
Wealth Alliance Networking for information
Company Limited) (“Wealth network equipment,
Alliance”) (Note) terminal products
and calculators in the
PRC
RIEBBERMER mE BRAA WPIF#J%"&%E AMEXRR
(I=8]) (M) ER@sRmast- AR %10,000,0007T
Zk mEmRTER
FINTREBREERRF PRC, Trading of electronic Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Limited liability company student cards of RMB20,100,000
Star Technology Co., Ltd)
RITREBRRBRAA mE - BRAA HESTEARE AMERA
AR #20,100,0007T
RBEREAtECBLE PRC, Precious metals Registered capital of 55%

BRRAF (transliterated as
Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant
Precious Metals Limited)
(“Guoyin”)

Limited liability company

brokerage and spot
trading

RMB20,000,000 (of
which RMB10,000,000
has been paid up as at

31 December 2015)

RYESEtECBEE REBRAR EvBELNAERS HMERA
BRAR ([BR]) AR #20,000,0007T (&
AR #10,000,0007T

RZZE—REF

+-A=+—HEB&R)

BB ARKANEE B &SRS G ZEN
BARzEAERD  RAKEFEZMER
B100% E o

Note: The equity interests in these subsidiaries are directly or indirectly held by B 5E
nominees on behalf of the Group and the Group holds 100% effective
interest in the subsidiary.

ERBIEER /Y AKE XA %éﬁ?

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets BRETEFE B AR -EERE
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in FYEAMMEA ﬂZﬁﬂiﬂl%ﬁﬁz%mE%@
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive RITEK °

length.

BENRAKREEERAA
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
subsidiaries

The Group has the following commitments relating to its
subsidiaries

18. RMBATZIRE (&)

ARMBASI ZRBERNAGR

AEBEHRAEHEEMB AR ZIAT AR

2015 2014
—E—A%F —Z—

HK$ HK$

B &I

Commitment to provide funding if called EHEIRERIEHES 3,548,790 3,734,490

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries.

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest for the year is HK$7,006,907
(2014: HK$5,267,851), of which HK$7,006,524 (2014:
HK5,267,850) is for Guoyin. The non-controlling interests in
respect of other subsidiary is not material.

The Proportion of ownership interests held by non-controlling
interests in Guoyin is 45% (2014:45%).

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to Guoyin,
the only subsidiary of the group which has a material non-
controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial information
presented below represents the amounts before any inter-
company elimination.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. RMBATZIRE (&)

Material non-controlling interest (continued) EXFEEREER (F)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEXFEREDZHBLAGZHEE
material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (&)
Summarized statement of financial position HBEMIHEHE
2015 2014
—E—-4fF —Z— Y
HK$ HK$
I BT
Current TEh
Assets BE 21,894,547 21,514,701
Liabilities Bf& (1,403,274) (4,883,404)
Total current net assets MEBEEEFE 20,491,273 16,631,297
Non-current FERH
Assets BE 935,836 1,851,145
Liabilities B8E& - -
Total non-current net assets ERBEELFE 935,836 1,851,145
Net assets EEFE 21,427,109 18,482,442

BENRAKREEERAA
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMBATZHE (&
Material non-controlling interest (continued) EXFEEREER (F)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEXFEREDZHBLAGZHEE
material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (&)

Summarized statement of profit or loss and other Bam RAEMEEHKAFEXEZE

comprehensive income

2015 2014

—¥-1fF —ZT—-MEF

HK$ HK$

BT & IT

Revenue Wz 19,565,735 36,256,989

Profit before income tax B BT 15 B0 A A 4,568,382 9,294,499

Income tax expense FriS %5 & (563,302) (3,343,439)

Profit for the year FAFE 4,005,080 5,951,060

Other comprehensive loss HEtemEEE (141,362) (38,095)

Total comprehensive income FHABE 3,863,718 5,912,965
Total comprehensive income allocated to EnlEdEERiEm

non-controlling interest FEBAEE 1,738,673 2,660,834

[ R 22 A 2 2 AR - -

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

124 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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18. RMBATZIRE (&)

Material non-controlling interest (continued) EXFEEREER (F)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEXFEREDZHBLAGZHEE
material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (&)
Summarized statement of cash flows B rmEkimE
2015 2014
—¥-AF — 4
HK$ HK$
BT &I
Cash flows from operating activities KEFREFBRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEEZHS 6,449,930 10,386,409
Interest received 2 F B 42,941 13,745
Tax paid B EIE (3,352,853) (1,035,009)
Net cash generated from operating activities #&Z FHEL 2R G FE 3,140,018 9,365,145
Net cash used in investing activities KEGSHACESFE - (370,022)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bt & EEHE + 2B & FE - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeREZEIER
EnFEE 3,140,018 8,995,123
Cash equivalents at beginning of the year EWJZEEA%TEIE B 12,944,810 4,100,927
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE) & (669,827) (151,240)
Cash equivalents at end of the year iﬂizfﬁﬁwﬁlﬁ i 15,415,001 12,944,810

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.

NEBERBINBRARIEEHE S8

BENRAKREEERAA

“E2-REER

125



126

NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REFEAT ZH#E

2015 2014

—E—A%F —HF

HK$ HK$

AT BT

At 1 January n—HA—H 25,251,797 15,920

Additions NE 2,365,860 24,175,538
Share of profit and FEAG A1E & H A

other comprehensive income 2| 36,748,757 1,594,693

Currency translation differences BEEHBER (2,075,721) (534,354)

Dividend received iz B WA (9,288,720) -

Impairment loss recognized BRERBEEE (5,059,075) -

At 31 December ®n+=-—A=+—H 47,942,898 25,251,797

The impairment of Interests in associates represents the
impairment on the investments in respect of JEYI AT E & HEH
BEZ SR 0ER QT (transliterated as Shenzhen Qianhai
First China International Commodities Exchange Centre
Limited). In November 2015, there was a temporary suspension
on the business operation of the associated company due
to the commodities trading policies review conducted by
the government of Qianhai. The management of the Group
considers this business suspension is temporarily and the
associate has to continue its business operation after any new
industry policies has been introduced.

However, due to the uncertainty in the timing of the new
industry policies introduced, the management considers
it is appropriate to make the impairment on the interests
in associates, which should reflect the present value of
the associate’s assets and liabilities realized in case the
new industry policies have not yet been announced by the
government of Qianhai after forthcoming one year.

The impairment charge was made with reference to the
estimation of the recoverable amounts which represents
the present value of estimated future cash flows for the
forthcoming one-year from the investment discounted at pre-
tax rate of 26.92%. The discount rate used is based on market
risk free interest rates adjusted for inflation differentials and
also include the debt premium, market risk premium, gearing
corporate tax rate and asset beta.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REBEATIZHEZE (&)
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2015 are RZE—RAFE+TA=+—0 Xx5H
as follows: ENE BT
Particulars of issued
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities shares held Interest held
&1 it R R 3L 30 B TEEH Fi 5 B 81T IR 53 518 i F i i
A R R S PRC, Limited liability Development and sales of Registered capital of 40%
B4 (transliterated company software for information RMB1,000,000
as Shenzhen Zhongcai network equipment, terminal
Yingtong Information products and calculators in
Technology Company the PRC
Limited)
I B i e BRI mEARAA NPEFRERHEEERBR AMERAR
BRATF Rl 8 BomEDR A K #1,000,0007C
E-I-kk =
FNAEBEEKREMRRS  PRC, Limited liability Provision of trading platform for ~ Registered capital of 38%
FOER DA (transliterated  company precious metal and provision RMB38,000,000
as Shenzhen Qianhai of related consultancy (of which
First China International services RMB19,000,013 has
Commodities Exchange been paid up as at
Centre Limited) 31 December 2015)
mﬂl\ﬁﬁ/iéilfiﬁﬁuux hE - BRAA REEEERHTA HMERA
ROBRR WR AR ARS A K #38,000,0007T
(AP ARE
19,000,0137T
ERZZ—RF
TZA=+-B&R)
BE(EE)BERKSHFL  PRC, Limited liability Sale of agricultural products, Registered capital of 45%
AR 7 (transliterated company provision of transportation RMB225,000,000
as First China (Liaoning) services and e-commerce (of which
Agricultural Products services RMB?2,000,000 has
Trading Centre Company been paid up as at
Limited) 31 December 2015)
BE(RE)RERRIFL HE FRAA HEREM RUEEGRBNE AMERR
BRRF FEBRYE A K #225,000,0007C
(e
AR #2,000,0007t2
R-Z-h%
TZA=+-B&R)

EENERAREARL
“e-zseg 12/
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

The above associates are private companies and there is no
quoted market value available.

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of

REEAB 2 (&)
LA E AR RBERERGS
B HRERAARR-

A EBERRIESMARRAILE™T
BEEH2E-

ARBEASZRBERNAGR

associates
The Group has the following commitments relating to its NEERBEABEERE QR Z AT EE
associates
2015 2014
—E—AR%F —T—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Commitment to provide funding if called ABEBRIREREES 286,269,045 23,651,754
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there are no contingent E’\\:%i AFRZZT—WF+A
liabilities relating to the associates. =+—H BER TIEY%EE °
Material Associate EEBEANT
The Directors consider Shenzhen Qianhai First China EEMRAFEEEZERERRR S

International Commodities Exchange Centre Limited is a
material associate to the Group.

Set out below are the summarized financial information in
respect of the Shenzhen Qianhai First China International
Commodities Exchange Centre Limited.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REBEATIZHELE (£
Material Associate (continued) EEMEAT (&)
Summarized statement of financial position BBREBEEE
2015 2014
—E¥—A%F —E—mF
HK$ HK$
I BT
Current nE
Cash and cash equivalent RekBAeFEER 147,615,334 167,050,143
Other current assets (excluding cash) EmEshEE (ReBIN) 74,954,680 12,322,120
Total current assets mEVAEBE 222,570,014 179,372,263
Other current liabilities HitmsaE (100,695,001)  (121,632,670)
Non-current E B
Assets BiE 12,914,729 8,671,620
Net assets BEFE 134,789,742 66,411,213
Summarized statement of profit or loss and other B REMEERALEITE
comprehensive income
2015 2014
—¥-1fF —E-MF
HK$ HKS$
I BT
Revenue W 215,696,882 20,945,766
Depreciation and amortization & K 5 2,261,540 763,071
Interest income B U A 1,576,786 244,495
Profit or loss from continuing operation REFBESLEK ZEBR 116,366,528 4,964,279
Income tax expenses FriS %5 & (17,538,861) (767,718)
Post-tax profit from continuing operation REFELEEBH 2
PR 35 1808 98,827,667 4,196,561
Other comprehensive income TR/ (3,488,196) (26,864)
Total comprehensive income THER AL 95,339,471 4,169,697
HEVLEEXEEERLT 129
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Material Associate (continued)
Summarized statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (continued)
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the material associate, adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and
the material associate, and not the Group’s share of these
amounts.

Reconciliation of summarized financial information
Reconciliation of the summarized financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the material

19. REFEAT Z#E: (&)

EEBEAS (&)
R RAMEEARABREE (&)

B ER R E X E R B M HRER A
2z (MIERNKEHZETEN
D) AR AKERE K E QA
ZEEFTHRZERELFE-

HMBEHBEZ
FE®ecMBERMERANERK S
NRA|Z e Z REEH K-

associate.
Summarized financial information HBEHEE
2015 2014
—E—A%F —E—F
HK$ HK$
I BT
Closing net assets FREEFE 134,789,742 66,411,213
Impairment loss recognised BRERBEEE (12,843,453) -
121,946,289 66,411,213
Carrying value of interest in REREE RG] 2 Em 2
material associate @ 38% AR A @38% 46,339,590 25,236,261

Set out below are the aggregate information of an associate
that are not individually material:

BRI TEEZ —HEE R RIELERH
HIEAR -

2015 2014

—T—-AF —T-F

HK$ HK$

I BT

The Group’s share of loss KEBEGEBE (805,756) -
The Group’s share of AEBEEEEME2EmUEA

other comprehensive income 27,667 (384)
The Group’s share of AEEEEZEKRABE

total comprehensive income (778,089) (384)

Aggregate carrying amount of AEER—MEEEAR
the Group's interest in an associate WmZ BHEE 1,603,308 15,536

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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F
SoD s 'l!l\
e/ B b
agf i'-‘,TH |

\ i

NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-A=+—RHIFE

20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE

20. B AK(E

2015 2014

—E—-AF —ZT—NF

HK$ HK$

BT o

At 1 January n—HA—H 4,232,422 -
At acquisition date of 14 July 2014 R-ZE—NFELA/+UH

(Note 35) Wk B HY (B 3E35) - 12,039,300

Change in fair value NEEEY 27,278,678 (8,018,240)

Currency translation difference HHEN =5 - 211,362

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 31,511,100 4,232,422

The fair value of contingent consideration receivable is related
to the acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Limited
(see Note 35) in year 2014.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the vendors guaranteed
to the Group that the net profit after tax of Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd. (based on its audited accounts) for each
of the three financial years ending 31 December 2015, 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall be as follows:
(i) for the year ending 31 December 2015: not less than
RMB20,000,000; (i) for the year ending 31 December 2016:
not less than RMB30,000,000; (iii) for the year ending 31
December 2017: not less than RMB40,000,000.

The vendors failed to achieve the profit targets of
RMB20,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
no shares under the escrow arrangement will be released
to the vendors in year 2015. Pursuant to the acquisition
agreement, the profit targets set for year 2015 in amount of
RMB20,000,000 could be accumulated to next year if fails to
achieve in the corresponding year.

The increase in the fair value of contingent consideration
receivable was due to the failure on achieving the profit targets
set for year 2015 by the vendors. The contractual customers
temporarily postponed their orders because of the navigating
chips of electronic cards and devices was in preparatory
stage to be changed to coordinate with the BeiDou Navigation
Satellite System (L} EHEEM AL .

JEWRKAREBZAFEDER -ZT—Y
FREFRNTRKEBREER AR (R
B3E35) B -

BEWERH BEHFRASERE &
JmREBRBEERAAREBET
—ARAF+_A=t+—H -—ZE—XF
+—_A=+-—HBRERZ-ZZ—+F+=A
—T—HLE=EMBRFEFESF 2BRBE
FAE(RBEL&EZEE)OT : (V&
E_T-—AF+_A=+—BItFE:
T AR #20,000,0007T : (il ==
T-XNE+-_A=Z+—BLEFE: T
B A R #30,000,0007T: (i zE -
—t+FF+ZA=F+—HLEFE:TIR
AR #40,000,0007T °

EhRRENBE-_ZE-—HE+ A
T+t BHLEFEZEMEEZARK
20,000,000t BRN =T —HAFFE i
TEREBETELHRE MK
B BIEWE RS — S —RF2%MNE
=% E A A R #20,000,0007T ¢ i 6 B8
FEZHMBEEZREER AIRFFET
_ﬁgo

R SRR (B 2 A TR ATy R E
REEEE =T — RIFER 2 5B A
B BRMNET FAREZSRLA
BRASETR WA &2 HA
R HANEPRAFEEEREY
HES
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A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE

(continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable at 31
December 2015 and 2014 are based on the valuations under
probability model, which is performed by an independent
professional valuer. The variable and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable are based on the management’s best estimate. The
value of the contingent consideration receivable varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

Inputs into probability model:

(i) Profit guarantee amount: RMB50,000,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2016 and RMB40,000,000 for the
year ending 31 December 2017

(i)  Number of shares of the Company under escrow
arrangement: 200,000,000

(i)  The Company’s share price as at 31 December 2015:

20. FEMGEAAIKME (&)

W-ZE—RER-F-—ME+=H
:+—EZ@%X@&EZ@$@E%
mwzﬁﬂ%mzm@<mf*$%ﬁ
BRI ) 318 - T H AR ARE R
E%%Zﬁ%&ﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁmﬁFZE
fef st BIRSARE Y A FERET
RS B LT R -

BRED 0 ABE

() HBAERRE:-BHE-_ZT— X
FH+_AZ+—BLEEEHA
R #50,000,000t &= - &
—+tF+-_AZ+—HHOAREKE
40,000,0007C

(i) FEERHFTARAZBMHHE :
200,000,000

—EFt+-A=+—B=XK

iy R=-=

HK$0.26 NAIMAR(E : 0.26/8 7T
Probability
Scenario &5 =
Optimistic LEE 5%
Expected hETHE 70%
Pessimistic R5FE 25%
Settlement date: 31 December 2016 and ?ﬁ:gi A:—ZE—XF+-A=+—HK

31 December 2017
Range of profits shortfall

FMETRZEE

Discount rate: BRI &
Discount factor: PIRRE:

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there was an increase
of HK$27,278,678 recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
contingent consideration arrangement after taking into the
consideration of the calculation based on the above inputs.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

E—+F+-_A=+—8

RMB50,000,000

to RMB65,000,000
AR
50,000,0007t &=
AR
65,000,0007T

20%

0.66

B -_Z—HAF+_-_A=+—H1t
FE KRRl ASBEEDLD 2
AEC-FEBEEREMEERKARE
Rtk ARE LR 2 2 58 N
27,278,678 T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-A=+—RHIFE

20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 20. FEWEEAKE (=2)
(continued)
The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable PUEE AR S AR E 2 A FETIR
at acquisition date is based on valuation results from the BEXEGHEMASH Z2HBELERLE
professional valuer, by using a discounted cash flow method. RAARREeMEHE FRZURER
The discount rate of 22% was used. 22% °
INVENTORIES 21. #&
2015 2014
—T-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Finished goods X & 3,729,957 3,202,908

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognized as an

expense and included in profit or loss is as follow:

EERRORR AL BESEIN
mF

2015 2014

—E¥—A%F —E—F

HK$ HK$

I BT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 398,032 2,147,621

BENKEKREEERDA
“E-AFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

22, EWESRIE

2015 2014
—¥-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amounts receivable arising from BAHRULEBEE
securities broking: JE YRR IE -
Margin clients RESEP 1,972,037 3,527,388
Cash clients ReBP 4,231,651 700,445
Brokers and dealers Bk 5H 7 6
Amounts receivable arising from precious ECBRERIHK
metals spot trading and brokerage: BIEBEEZ
FEWERIE -
PMEC (net) E2BRSHO (CFE) - 32,600
Shenzhen Qianhai First China AYIATE EERER M
International Commodities RSB LERA G
Exchange Centre Limited (net) (FE) - 1,304,360
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEEPREEFRAF
Company Limited (net) O%E) 3,061,540 -
Other trade receivables Hih el & SR8 571,608 1,978,971
9,836,843 7,543,770
Less: Provision for impairment loss AR EE R (36,000) (36,000)
Trade receivables, net JEWE SIE FE 9,800,843 7,507,770

Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable
on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates
and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value of
approximately HK$21,874,000 as at 31 December 2015
(2014: HK$19,268,000). No aged analysis is disclosed as,
in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the business of

securities margin financing.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

BRFRESEPRABAREREE

BEROTMBAMNEFTE TUEFPR
T E-FEF+_-_A=+—H#EWHE
#)21,874,0008 L (ZF — W F :
19,268,000/ T ) 2 Bt 22 AT £ T K 48 &%
FERB -ENEHFREFCBEERZ
ME BEBEZRABER DI ETAEN
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The settlement terms of amounts receivable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts receivable from margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

Other trade receivables arising from the trading of electronic
student card are due immediately from date of billing but the
Group will generally grant a credit period of 60 days on average
to its customers

The following is an aged analysis of other trade receivables at
the reporting period:

22,

FEWE ZRIE (&)

RE IR R AL RIS P A PR RN ETT R
AR —HMER S AR R E
At R IRFE & B P RIRIN - R BRIR
R=TBRA-

MR EEL Y R ERE SR
HOREREEY QMBS AR
B RRATHESFEATALEHE
o

HihfEUE 5 FBRIRE HE 2 B D
MranT

2015 2014

—T-AF —T-F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

0-30 days 0Z30H 535,608 1,942,971
31-90 days 31290H - -
91-180 days 912180H - -
181-365 days 1812365H - -
Over 365 days 365H LA - -
535,608 1,942,971

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, all other
trade receivables, except for the impaired amounts indicated
below, were not past due.

RBEMESRE SAEERRSE
WEZHRAZEEE RREEEFZ
FEUFRIRSN - AN B I L E U E 5
RIS A T E 4 (AR -

R-ZTE—RE+_A=+—HEZ=Z
—mFE+—A=+—H B TIXREEE
BB 2 FIBIN B EMEWRE 558
BB

BENRAKREEERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements on the provision of impairment of trade receivables

are as follow:

22,

FEWESRIE (Z)
EWE S HBREEE 2 ZEHBERN
T

2015 2014

—E-4fF —ZE-MF

HK$ HK$

T 78T

At 1 January 36,000 120,570
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables & Ut & 5 5 18 5 & # @ - (84,570)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 36,000 36,000

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s trade
receivables of HK$36,000 (2014: HK$36,000) were individually
determined to be impaired.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RZE—RAFER_ZF—HWNF+=A
=t+—H AEEZEKE SHHE
36,0007 7T ( —Z — Y4 : 36,000/ 7T )
BRENEEESFURE -

AEERKEZFAREELZATE
#olE

2015 2014
—E—A%F —E—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong dollars 9,265,235 4,227,839
RMB 535,608 3,279,931
9,800,843 7,507,770
23. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 23. EREEWRIE

In April, 2015, &

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015

*i5 0 OFI) AR AT (transliterated
as First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into
loans agreement with independent third party and agreed
to grant one year loans respectively with principal amount
of RMB2,500,000 at fixed interest rate of 1.87% (monthly
effective rate of 6.6%) per month. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

RZZE—RhFMA BFEFFEMCOR
YERAR (AEBEZz2EHBAR)
BBYE=FRILERBE RERLY
& # AR ¥2,500,0007T 2 — F 5
EFCREESAMEK187E (BERA
MEREOE)E -ANEBLEHRZF
oA EAERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+-A=+—RAIFE

23. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (continued)

In May 2015 and June 2015, BEZESHAM ORI BR AR
(transliterated as First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd) entered into loans agreement with independent third
parties and agreed to grant eight month loans with principal
amount in total of RMB12,000,000 and RMB2,000,000 at fixed
interest rate of 15% per annum (effective interest ratio of 17%
to 18% per annum) respectively.

In November 2014, BZEFHE OFII) BRAF] (transliterated
as First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd)
entered into loans agreement with independent third parties and
agreed to grant six months loans with principal amount in total of
RMB14,000,000 at fixed interest rate of 15% to 18% per annum.
The loan has been fully repaid during the year.

The repayment of the outstanding loan principals will be at
maturity and interest is repayable monthly. The above loan
in the amount of RMB14,00,000 is secured by the pledged
securities which are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
and Shenzhen Stock Exchange and such securities were
transferred to the nominee of the Group and in his custody. The
fair value of such securities was approximately RMB26,700,000
as at 31 December 2015.

At initial recognition, the Group determined the fair value of
the loans receivable equivalent to their principal amounts. The
analysis of the carrying amount of loans receivable as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

23.

BERREKRIE (&)
RZE—RAFRARZZTE—RAFA-
BEZSFFAFINDERAFTEB L
BEZFEMNERBH REINEEA
% % AR #12,000,0007T M A R #
2,000,000t 2 \ @ A E# - % E T F
MEASEF B (BEFEMNERBI7THE
18% ) °

RZE—WNF+—F BEEFHFLEH
ORI EBERRAFHB T E = I
BExthm REREASRBBARE
14,000,000t 2 AR A EF - HE T F
FEASEE18EFT B - ZEERERF
NEEEE-

RAEEERACERIBPEHEEM
FMEEZAEN UESBEAARE
14,000,000/ 2 EF AR EBELER S
iR BEER G Eh 2 BB HE
EH MZzEEFDEETAER R
HEANTBHERE- R_ZE—RHAF+=A
=+ B ZEBHFILAFENBAR
#26,700,0007T °

RERERR AEEBERKER
NFEEEREAEE - R-_FT—RF
RZZE-—NMF+-RA=+—HEKER
ZEREESTAT

2015 2014

—E¥—AR%F —ZT—NF

HK$ HK$

A IT BT

Current B HA 19,518,345 17,427,620

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, no loan and receivables
were past due.

Management of the Group determined no impairment loss on
these loans receivable are required to be recognized, after
taking into account the collaterals held by the Group and no
past due on loans and receivables.

e

—E-RAER-_FT-MFE+T-A
=t—B EERMERRIBREE
Hj

o

AEBEERBHTE KEBANEEME
BB RN A ERR ERIR Y
B BEERAZSRRERZRE
Big -
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PROFIT OR LOSS

—hFEtZA=t—RALFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE_-Z

24, RAFEFANERZEMEE

2015 2014
—T-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Listed equity — held for trading LRE-—FIEER
Equity securities — Hong Kong NG e 201,969,810 197,682,520
No. of Fair value Fair value
share held as at Approximately as at (losses)/gains on
31 December percentage of 31 December securities
Stock code Company name 2015 shareholding 2015 trading for 2015
R-ZB—-1F R-ZT-E&E —R-LERE
+=-A=+-H BoEsR +-A=+—8B HEEHATHE
BRELR AT EHE HREE Bkt ZA¥E (B8), i
HK$ HK$
T T
01190 Bolina 46,962,000 4.66% 92,045,520 (48,023,753)
SRRy
01335 Sheen Tai 83,152,000 4.14% 89,804,160 22,234,799
JIE 2 123 B
06898 China Aluminum 9,506,000 1.52% 17,110,800 (4,009,745)
o B 4
01019 Convoy 6,918,000 0.05% 3,009,330 (2,842,811)
RE SR
201,969,810 (32,641,510)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “operating activities” as part of changes in

working capital in the statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through

BATFEN RS2 SRAEXNASR
SENEEED]M2F AREES
282 — -

BAFEAABRZEMEEZATE

profit or loss are recorded in “other income and net (loss)/ 2 AGEBEEREMEERARE

gains” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current

bid prices in an active market.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+-A=+—RAIFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

25. AARIE -ZEREEKRIE

RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
—T-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
Other receivables H W 5 0R 31,794,760 1,351,016
Other deposits and prepayments Hibiz & RIENRIE 1,783,271 7,128,000
33,578,031 8,479,016

The amount of other receivables included the amount of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,658,600) which
represents the refundable earnest money paid for the proposed
acquisition for the entire registered capital of RE&E F#at
JRABBR AT (transliterated as Mingin Quantum New Energy
Co., Limited) in January 2015. The vendors has pledged their
owned shares in REEFHELIRBMRAA] (transliterated as
Mingin Quantum New Energy Co., Limited) as a collateral
on the refundable earnest money paid by the Group. The
proposed acquisition has been terminated in May 2015 and
thus other receivable of RMB20,000,000 was recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position accordingly.
Although the Group has filed an arbitration application (the
“Arbitration”) to South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission for the repayment of the overdue
receivables, the management believes that no impairment is
necessary in respect of this balance after taking consideration
of the legal opinion obtained that the amounts can be
recovered by selling the pledged shares.

H fth JE UL FUE B 35 A R #20,000,0007T
(¥E 7 23,658,6008 7T ) » HERLEH W
BROETFHERBRAR 2B M
BAR -_ZT—RE—-AXNHNARER
B2 -EFCHERRYETHRERA
RARZBROER EAREELHH
RENESZEAR 2R BED R
—E-RFRH AR At EMERR
8 A R #20,000,0007T # fE R 7 & B 7%
MRARAR - BEASEECDREZAEY
EWFBEOERERCELZSHRES
GRXMEBEF([HH]) ERER
B EBEIMESZERER ZER
TE A EIB I E B I Uk Bl - BB AT
ZEEBRIEH R ERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FORMER DIRECTORS 26. FEEWRIEEERIE

2015 2014

—¥-1F —E—-NF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Amounts due from former Directors JEUR AT ZE B 38 831,419 32,541,415
The SFC has served a petition under the Securities and Futures BEeRN_Z——_F1+—AREBESFR

Ordinance against the Company, three former Directors Mr.
Yin Yingneng Richard, Mr. Wang Wenming and Mr. Lee Yiu
Sun of the Company in November 2012. SFC was seeking
disqualification orders against such Directors and an order
that the Company should itself or otherwise procure Aceview
International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to bring court proceedings against Fame Treasure
Limited and/or other parties at fault to recover the dividend of
RMB18,692,000 (equivalent to HK$23,268,362) to it.

The judgment from the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of First Instance was made
on 16 January 2015. The court ordered that the three
former Directors should compensate the dividend paid of
RMB18,692,000 with the interest accruing at 1% above the
prime rate published by the HSBC from 31 December 2008
to the date hereof and thereafter at the judgment rate (the
“Judgment interest”) until the date of payment to the Company.
Such interest accrued is HK$8,441,634.

Half of the Company’s professional and legal fees in the
amounts of HK$831,419 incurred in relation to this litigation
amounted to should also be paid by Mr. Yin Yingneng Richard,
Mr. Wang Wenming and Mr. Lee Yiu Sun jointly and severally.
The above amounts due from the former Directors represent
the dividend compensations, the Judgment interest and the
reimbursements of Company’s professional and legal costs in
relation to this litigation to the Group by the former Directors.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

HEKRPRAQR  ARRZ=ZHAE
E(FERLE TXHLERTRH
SRR BEE IS KHZESE
EVHEERSRDLARBEAT RS
TREARRZZ2EH B A RS B
ERARMBEBRAG R XFEB
fzHMATREZERFR LB
¥z AE 2z kB ARK18,692,0007T
(¥E 723,268,362 7T ) °

EEBNTHRESSERRIAEER =
E—RF— AT NAELHR AR A
PENAAEREEREDCNREARRE
18,692,000t WiZELIRITHE —TF
NF+—AZ+—HEHARBEAMH
ZEEBEMRBIMETE 2 BIRH
RRE(THANMEDFHEEERAR
A 3K B B o RZFEET FI B R8,441,6347%

JC °

ARRREFRNMEEZEEREES
R —¥ ©54831,4198 T/ ERF
JERE A IXHAAERTBFLEL
B & BB EYE - FEUNATEE F 2 il 3k
HEARBEE HAFBE RATEE S
$@Tﬁﬁ%ﬁ§z§%&£@§%ﬁ
rEBMEEZSHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FORMER DIRECTORS 26. EWREESNRIE (&
(continued)
The amounts due from former Directors were unsecured. FEU AT A8 S REW EIE T - IRIEAE
According to the court order, the dividend of RMB18,692,000 H - BREKBE ARM18,692,0007T LA
and its interest accruing at 1% above the prime rate published MEARELRIT AN 2 HEEFE S M
by HSBC has been repaid to the Company in April 2015. The 1EFENNE RZZE-—RFNARE
court order did not specify the repayable period for the half of TARRB AR BIRZFAMEEZE
the Company’s professional and legal fees. EREEBERN—FREBHASHER
PR o
27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. RITHEBRRER
(a) Cash and cash equivalent (a) RE2RBLZEIEH
2015 2014
—¥-AF —ET—-MEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash at bank and on hand WITRFHEIRE 263,837,599 304,268,113
Short-term bank deposits 5 EISRITIF R 2,063,948 2,051,793
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFMEEE 265,901,547 306,319,906
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank balances R-ZE—RF+-A=+—H =«
and cash of approximately HK$58,540,204 (2014: SEBUAREINBZRITHESBK
HK$85,486,363) which are denominated in RMB. The IR & #758,540,2047%& 70 (ZZ— M
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to & :85,486,363F L) i 2 E XK
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC TE [ 1 AR B IR AN R B BT B
government. 2 HNEE I FTBR o
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks BARTHEBTEREERTERE
with no recent history of default. AR R BRER 2 R1T o

HEGEBEREERAA 14
—E-REEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HIFE

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued) 27. RITERRRE (F)
(a) Cash and cash equivalent (continued) (a) BRE&ERRL%EEIER (&)
Bank balances and cash include the following for the MEEEHRESMERME @ |ITEH
purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: RESEEATSIE:
2015 2014
—E—4fF —E—OF
HK$ HK$
I BT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFRIBE 263,837,599 304,268,113
Short-term bank deposits REERITER 2,063,948 2,051,793
Segregated trust bank balances B EFLRP St (24,411,437) (14,246,690)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRELZEIER 241,490,110 292,073,216
(b) Restricted cash (b) ZRRFIFEL
As at 31 December 2015, RMB1,534,998, which is RZE—RFF+=_A=+—H"
equivalent to HK$1,815,795 (2014: HK$1,910,811) are AR ®1,534,9987L (HE R
restricted cash balance held at designated bank account 1,815,795 70) (Z T — M4
controlled by customs of the PRC as the guarantee 1,910,811 L) AR HIH & &
deposit for the motor vehicle under the supervision by the e IMERAXPRBIGHEE 2 /A8
customs of the PRC. RES W GEIESG 245
ERITERPEA-
28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. FEfIESRIE
2015 2014
—T-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amounts payable arising BHLMLET
from securities broking: FTEE 4 FE AP RRIE
Margin clients RESEP 2,352,874 103,593
Cash clients b = 14,322,759 15,383,934
HKSCC (net) EBEE (FE) - 63,368
Other trade payables HEMENE S RIE 5,897 5,897
16,681,530 15,556,792

142 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RF+-A=+—RAIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)
Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of the business of securities margin
financing.

The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts payable to margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables at the
end of each reporting period:

28.

BHESRIE (&)
ENRESEPRRABREREBEE -E
RESRECREXH ML EFR
RERE DAL EAEMREIMEE  BARE
BB I DT -

B EGTEL RN RRARET
RZAPER-—FIMER S AR
LR EMRES TP RN SBRRAR
=tBRBEE-

HMENE S HRIENSRE PEE R
BRE DA T

2015 2014

—E—A%F —E—NF

HK$ HK$

I BT

0-30 days 0Z30R - -
31-90 days 31290H - -
91-180 days 91%180H - -
181-365 days 181%E365H - -
Over 365 days 3658 A £ 5,897 5,897
5,897 5,897

BENRAKREEERAA
“E-AFFH

-:'-:-I
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. HhFEMRIE R EFTRRIE
KEER - Z—RFEN_ZFT—NF+=

Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 were the following amounts due to related

parties:

A=+ —AZEMENFAEBRATE

NBERBEANLRE:
2015 2014
—E—A%F — T
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Amounts due to related parties: JENEREEA LRI
FYTEEREERAA AT EEERE
(transliterated as Shenzhen Guangxin BRARA
Investment Company Limited) (DRINEED)
(“Shenzhen Guangxin”) (Note (a)) (FizE@)) - 795,416
A Director of the Company KANRIEEZFHIE - 175,050
- 970,466
Other payables and accruals Hfh FE S 5B R E AT RIA 4,388,082 5,773,444
4,388,082 6,743,910

Notes:

(a) Shenzhen Guangxin is a limited company established in the PRC and is
controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who is

a former director of the Company.

(b) The amounts due to the above related parties are unsecured, interest-free,

denominated in RMB and repayable on demand.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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30. BORROWINGS 30. &
2015 2014
—¥-AF —T-F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Borrowing included in current liabilities FFARBAGENER
- Secured bank borrowings —BHEMRITER 10,494,013 12,377,681
Notes: M3 -
(a) The maturity of borrowings is as follows (Note (c)): (a) BREEHAFBEET (MEc) :
2015 2014
—E-Af —E-mF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —F R 1,939,954 1,882,660
In the second year F_F 1,998,958 1,939,923
In the third to fifth year F-EFERF 6,369,133 6,181,030
Over five years HMBART 185,968 2,374,068
10,494,013 12,377,681
(b) At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the bank borrowings of the Group were (b) RZE—RAFERZFT—NWF+=_A=+—
secured by the charges over the Group’s land and buildings (Note 15) 'K%.iﬁﬁ1j§#\ﬂﬂ$%.2iiﬁ&@ﬂ:
and corporate guarantees executed by the Company (Note 37). At 31 (FFE15)EREM W EHARRREAA
December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated BR(MFE7) RZT—HAFER_T—
in HK$, bearing floating interest rate of 3.00% (2014: 3.00%) per annum. F+-A=+—8 AEEZRITEZRY L‘/{

BhE YEFAZE3.00E (ZF—0
F:3.00F )T B °

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in (0) FES & RE IR E AR 5 P8 TE B B 5K B BAET
the loan agreement. He

The banks borrowings are shown under current liabilities as the loan (d) AR ERIBZEI B BERERERER R
agreements contain a repayment on demand clause. TERRRBHEEBE TR

HENSHEEZEEEFRA A
—E-REER
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31.

—hFEtZA=t—RALHFE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is
as follows:

BEFEBRAR
EEFEHBEZESH T :

2015 2014
—E—hfF —E—OF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—HA—H 60,798,607 4,016,263
Credit to the consolidated statement of FFAGRE B REM
profit or loss and other comprehensive FHEBARE :
income:
- Withholding tax on unremitted earnings of a — f BB & A &) K [&
PRC associate ARz FEME 4,320,880 -
- Reversal of fair value adjustment on —BREBEHER
non-monetary asset through FEBHEEY
business combination NEBERE (23,297,990) -
_ Others —H (214,865) (195,732)
Additions through business combination BREBEHAE - 56,230,535
Currency translation difference EMER =5 (2,161,581) 747,541
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 39,445,051 60,798,607

The deferred income tax liabilities are attributable to
accelerated tax depreciation, fair value adjustment and reversal
on non-monetary assets through business combination and
withholding tax on unremitted earnings of a PRC associate.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated
unused tax losses available for offset against future profits due
to the uncertainty of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2015, the unrecognised tax losses
of the Group amounted to HK$146, 299,067 (2014:
HK$163,025,096). These tax losses have no expiry date except
that HK$86,516,792 will expire from 2015 to 2020 (2014:
HK$82,482,135 expire from 2014 to 2019).

As at 31 December 2015, the unrecognized deferred tax
assets of the Group are as follows:

PSR A ER B MR E KB
BEBAFZIFEEHEE 2 X TFER
EREm P EgERERERRNZ
B -

R AR BEREE A& AR ML ER
REMBHRRAETAUEHEBRMEZ
BRI ADARGERERELEHEE
7o

R-E—RE+-_A=+—R8B K&
B~ KR 18 E 18 5146,299,067 %

7T (ZF — 4 : 163,025,096 7T ) °
86,516,792 TR —_ZE—HFZE
T FHEER(ZE—OF:
82,482 136 B T —_E—NFF &

—NEHEER) I ZERAERLE
fEm B A

RZE-—AF+A=1t—H F&H
ZARERELEMEREENT

2015 2014
—E—1fF —ET—UF

HK$ HK$

T BT

Unused tax losses REABHRBE B 14,275,271 16,873,811
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32. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM

—hFEt-A=t—RALEE

32. BARGEE

Number of Ordinary Share
Notes  issued shares shares premium Total
21T
it = BirEE TiER i3y Byl Ry
(in thousands) HKS$ HK$ HK$
(Ti) oy BT oy
As at 1 January 2014 RZ_Z-—MFE—-[F—H 4,458,960 44,589,602 1,075,500,687 1,120,090,289
Acquisition of subsidiary B AT (), (i 350,000 3,500,000 101,500,000 105,000,000
~ Issue of shares through placement %z&@aéﬁéﬁﬂ&‘ % (iv) 889,098 8,899,980 355,099,200 364,899,180
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrant A R B 1T R B
BTl (iii) 800,000 8,000,000 91,423,224 99,423,224
Transaction costs attributable to BRERNEERHKA
the placement of shares - - (9,624,245) (9,624,245)
At 31 December 2014, —E-mF
1 January 2015 and +-B=+-8"
at 31 December 2015 —Z-h%F—A
—BRZZ-1F
+-A=+—-H© 6,498,958 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 1,679,788,448
The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 5£I'Eé [i% 42 %1 &10,000,000, OOOHX
10,000,000,000 shares (2014: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a — P9 £ : 10,000,000,0008% ) -

par value of HK$0.01 per share (2014: HK$0.01 per share). All
issued shares are fully paid.

Notes:

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

The Group issued 150,000,000 ordinary shares on 14 July 2014 to the
vendors as part of the purchase consideration for interests in Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd. The ordinary shares issued have the same rights
as the other shares in issue. The fair value of the shares issued amounted
to HK$45,000,000.

The Group issued 200,000,000 ordinary shares for the acquisition of
the interests in Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd, which is subject to
the escrow agreement according to the profit guarantee requirement in
accordance with the related acquisition agreement.

During the year 2014 these shares were issued pursuant to the exercise
of warrants granted in previous year on 11 July 2014, 3 September 2014
and 24 December 2014 respectively. These shares rank pari passu in all
respect with other shares in issue.

In 22 October 2014, the Company placed through the placing agent to
issue 889,998,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.41 per share

Hxﬁfﬁi%o OB T(ZE—NF: 5k
0.01/87T) - FTEE BTG BRZRHEH

Eo

g

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

AEER_T-—HFLATEHARER B
??15O,OOO,OOOH&thﬁﬁrxL ERBERIT

EBRMRERABDEGZHBIRE O F
ﬁa@ﬂxﬁmﬁ’ﬂ’é?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ\@ﬁ?ﬂfiﬂxf 1
A - B#1TH M 2 A FE# 5 /45,000,000
BT

AEBERBFRITRKEBRIFBERAFZ
FE 25 ¥ 77200,000,0000% & & f% - 1R 15 48 78
BEWEZEFIRERE BAXBRRIED

2
2

R-ZE—NE BERBEFERHZRK
REETRZBER ZERHIFIR-F
—mFELtA+—H ZE-WFEAAZER
“E-FE+ A TMBEET - ZER
NEEMBHRTENES T EFARSE

5

RZB-—NE+TA-t+=-H KARAFRAEB
I RIEAFA0.41E L 2 BIRAL & 1T
889,998,000/% % i °

BENRAKREEERAA
“E-AFFH
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33. RESERVES

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of
the issued share capital and share premium of First China
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the
corporate reorganization undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January
2002.

Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to appropriate 10%
of statutory net profits to statutory reserves, upon
distribution of their post-tax profits in accordance with the
PRC laws and regulations. A company may discontinue
the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory
surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital.
The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
operations, or to increase the capital of the companies.

Translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2.5

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which persons working for the interest of the Group are
entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme and
any other share options schemes of the Company to any
person (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant of options
shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

The Old Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 17 December 2001. The
purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme is to provide
the people and the parties working for the interest of the
Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive
to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the
Old Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

34. RBRRHETE

(a)

ERRETE
ARAREEBREAS MARSE
BNSETIEZALTRHESARD
AR HE - FRIFEB AR RIK
RELIE  BAREBEIRERTE
B AL Lt 8 AR i 5T 81 A TR
Z BB R BB - TS5
BARATE D ETRN30% © F
FREARBRRELLE TR
PR BB IR M B A AT AT+ — &
AR REBEEBREFEIRAR
AR EMERETS D& LG
ERTEMALZERE (BB
T8 R el R 7T 2 8 BECHE ) JE AT R
EERBEETZRDERE  TF
HBEARARDEITHRD1% -

AABRBER-_ZZT—F+=A
THRBAZREER RNERK
S - EREREREIEER AR
EBMFZIEZ AT RS HiRE
EESAARIRE#E Mg
L7 F AL FlamEss MU
EERSEAAEEBZMBENFEE
REH - BIBEBRETS D
REEERAEREES (BER
RAIREMNBARES)RHEBER
W ARBEARRQR R o R
NAIARERNARE=Z AR HE
BEiE U ZEALTMAERRE
HEREREZER-
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—hFEtZA=t—RALHFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of a share.

On 5 September 2007, share options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 32,400,000 shares of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the
Company.

On 13 April 2010, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 84,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company. The fair value of 84,000,000 share options
granted under the share option scheme on 13 April 2010
was determined by the Directors to be HK$23,382,573
with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers using a binomial
model. The inputs into the model included grant date
share price of HK$0.4, exercise price of HK$0.419 per
share, expected volatility of 103.41%, expected option life
of 10 years, no expected dividend and estimated risk-free
interest rate of 2.833%.

The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December
2011. The Company has adopted the New Share Option
Scheme on 21 June 2012.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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(a)

ERREsTE (2)
EMBRERARERNRL 2B
1AL BhE-RAR
EFQARNSARAZHEALT
]l 1T - MERE AR 2 TT(EHIR
R R B R T EEE
T

TEERESEEET $TMERT

JI=F & ER: \ARARD
R BRI Z W (B ()i R E
BEROBEHAEEARZAEZFY
YT (8 ¢ K (i) 0 E 1A e

EA_7 T+FEARRB AAR
ETEERREEL AR ﬂﬁm/\
32,400,000 A& 2 &) Je 15 BB AR 4 -

RZE-ZFNA+=H" MAR
AATESEREERTEARBEAL
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—Iﬁﬁﬂ%m BAET 2 HER
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The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the share
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2015:

34. MBRRHERTEI (&

(a) EERERRMERTEI(Z&)
TREEEE-_Z—HE+_A4
—t+t—BLFEREEERER
EIFTIRHERE &

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Exercised Lapsed as at
Date of Exercise  Exercisable 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee grant price  period 2015 the year the year 2015
R-%-1% R-B-1f
-A-8 +ZA=+-8
REARE RHAH 1@ TEHE i8R AT 1€ ER{THE ERRY i K7€
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
ABmLE GEgiES) —E-%F 0419%T ZZ-ZFMA+=HZ
MAT=H ZZ-TEMATZH
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent
non-executive director
RAEHR (BUEHT —Z-%fF 0M9ET Z—Z-TEMA+ZHE
%) mA+=H —E-TEMATZR
Sub-total for directors 33,985,680 - - 33,985,680
B3t
5 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 52,040,573 - - 52,040,573
L4ER “T-%F 041981 Z—F-THEMATZHE
mA+=AH ZZ-TEMATZR
2 employess 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007 - 04/09/2017 4,779,236 - - 4,779,236
mAES k3 021581 Z—ETtENARAZE
NAEH “T—t5NAMA
Sub-total for employees 56,819,809 - - 56,819,809
EE G
Total 90,805,489 - - 90,805,489
&t
Weight average exercise price 0.408 - - 0.408

g FfEE

BENRAKREEERAA
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34, MERxHERTEl(&F)
(a) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EREIRHESTE(Z)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHZE-ZT—NOF+=A
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme =t+—BLEFEREEBRE
during the year ended 31 December 2014: EIFME L ERE 228
Number of share options
RREZE
Outstanding QOutstanding
as at Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2014 the year the year 2014
RZZ-mF RZE-MF
-F-A +ZA=1-H
AR R AH IRE  TREE HAITR ERFIR ERER HATTE
Mr. Wang Wenming 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
(executive director)
IXBEE (HTEE) —T-%f% 041987 Z—E-TEMATZHEE
mA+=R ZE-TEMATZA
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(executive director)
FRNEE (H7ES) —2-%% 0M9%T Z—E-ZEMA+=AE
mE+=H ZZZTEMATZA
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007 - 04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
(executive director)
ZRE AL (H77EF) ZETtE 02158 ZEE+ENAREE
ARER —Z-tENAEA
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
HEARE (FRITES) —T-%f% 041987 Z—F-TEMATZHEE
mA+=R ZE-TEMATZA
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent
non-executive director
RAEHR (B —2-%% 04198 “F-ZENATZHE
%) mA+=H ZE-TEMATZA
Sub-total for directors 81,778,042 - - 81,778,042
EEN
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 8,496,421 - - 8,496,421
“%EE —E-%f% 041981 Z—F-TEMATZHEE
mA+=A ZE-TEMATZA
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007 - 04/09/2017 531,026 - - 531,026
—%E8 “2ELE 021587 —ZFTLENLARHEE
NAEA —2-tFnAMA
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 - - 9,027,447
BB i
Total 90,805,489 - - 90,805,489
it
Weight average exercise price 0.408 - - 0.408
METHTRE
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

(b)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 90,805,489
(2014: 90,805,489) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under result in the issue of 90,805,489
(2014: 90,805,489) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$908,055 and
share premium of HK$36,164,481 (2014: share capital of
HK$908,055 and share premium of HK$36,164,481).

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a New Share Option scheme
under which person working for the interest of the Group
are entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in
the Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company to any person (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

34. REBRRHERTEI (&)

(a)

(b)

EEiEsTE (&)
RZE—RE+ZA=+—8"
NN FH90,805,48910 ( —Z—M
1 90,805,48917 ) 1R Ik & B2 AR
FTEIE 2 AR M R TT M - ek
TzEREE2TTE BER
%EHNE£7790,805,4890% ( —Z —M
£ :90,805,4890% ) A A & & i@
% + DA B2 BE A BB SR ZX908,0557%
TN 4 E36,164,481E L (=
T — Y 4F : {% ZA"908,0557% T & %
17 3% 836,164,481 7T ) °

s At ST B
ARRREHBRESE ARAE
SEMmTIEZ ATIRHESAR
AR S - FRIFEB AR AR
RESLAE - TRRENEEES
8 M AR E A BB R A B AT TR
2 BTSRRI #E - A5
HBA R R B BEITARH30% °
FROFER/ARBRRELMME B
AR B R B BT EA + =
18 A A - R BB A 5t 8 R X
NRAEEFEMBERE R RN
BeXTENALZBRE (2%
EATEE R W RTT R A ) 1T &
HEeEEEeRTIREREC T
BHEBARRZEITHRMNI% -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose of the
New Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group. Under the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for settlement in respect of goods or services provided to
the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)
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34. MBRRHERTEI (&

The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FEERRMERTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TREZEHE_ZT—HF+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =T —HIEFEREBERERER
during the year ended 31 December 2015: 2T B R A o
Number of share options
BRESE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2015 the year the year 2015
R-§-1& R-%-%f
-A-8 +ZA=+-H
RREARE el =k f1fE  TEEE i8R AT 1€ ERRY ERRY ie} K AT 1
Mr. Haroon Hasan* 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) -
(executive Director)
Haroon Hasan%t “T-mE 05188 —E-WMEAA-TZAZ
(H178%) AA-t-H “Z-mERAZT-R
Mr. James Beeland 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
Rogers Jr. (independent
non-executive Director)
James Beeland —T-mE 0518%T Z—E-MEARZT-RZ
Rogers Jr.jt & NAZ+ZH ZEZMEAAZT-H
(BU¥HITES)
Mr. Chen Li 13 November 2014 HK$0.590  13/11/2014 - 12/11/2024 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
(executive Director)
BhLE(Bi78EZ) —I-mEF 05908 Z—EB-MET-AT=HZE
+-A+=A ZEIRE+-A+ZH
Mr. James Beeland 16 October 2015 HK$0.238  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 - 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Rogers Jr. (independent
non-executive Director)
James Beeland —T-RE 0288%T Z—ZT-RFtATABE
Rogers Jr.jt & +A+7A ZZ-RFTATARA
(CBIEHTES)
Total 45,000,000 20,000,000 (10,000,000) 55,000,000
st
Weight average exercise 0.542 0.238 0.518 0.436

price

mEFHaEE
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

34. RBRRHERTEI (&

(b) The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FREEARMERTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHZE-ZT—NOF+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =T —HIEFERBERERER
during the year ended 31 December 2014: SR LERE S
Number of share options
BRESA
Outstanding QOutstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2014 the year the year 2014
RZE-NE RZZ-IE
—-A-8 +ZR=1+-8
ERAER i HH TEE  TREE HAITR ERRH ERER HATTE
Mr. Haroon Hasan® 22 September 2014 HK$0518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
(executive Director)
Haroon Hasan%t £ * —Z-mE 051837 ZZ-MEAAZTZRE
(H178%) hE=+=H “Z-mERAZT-R
Mr. James Beeland 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 - 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Rogers Jr. (independent
non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers —T-mE 0518% 7T “Z-MEAAZTZRZ
JiE(BUFNGTESZ)  AAZTZH ZECMEARCZTH
Mr. Chen Li 13 November 2014 HK$0.590  13/11/2014 - 12/11/2024 - 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
(executive Director)
Bh%s (B178%) —Z-mE 05907 7T —E-MmE+-A+TZR%E
T-A+=H ZEZRET-ATZH
Total - 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
izt
Weight average exercise - 0.542 - 0.542

price

g FekEE

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 55,000,000
(2014: 45,000,000) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the New Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would result in the issue of 55,000,000 (2014:
45,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$550,000 (2014:
HK$450,000) and share premium of HK$23,420,000
(2014: HK$23,940,000).

The share options granted to Mr. James Beeland Rogers
Jr. and Mr. Chen Li may be exercisable at any time during
the exercisable period. In the event that the service
agreement is terminated before the term ends, they
shall be entitled to the said share options on a pro rata
basis, and any excess share options granted to but not
exercised by them shall lapse.

The vesting condition of the share option granted to
Mr. Chen Li is to exercise the share option only after
satisfaction of the condition that the net profit after tax
of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd (based on its
audited accounts) for the profit targets specified in the
employment contract.

The vesting period of the options are three years’ on pro rata basis.
As Mr. Haroon Hasan has resigned his position on 4 February
2015, the options granted to him which are not exercised will be
lapsed accordingly.

34. RBRRHERTEI (&)

(b)

Wt (2)
R—_ZE—RF+=-_A=+—8H"
ANAFA55,000,00018 ( —Z—M
4 1 45,000,00017 ) 48 ¥ 5 B8 A%
FHEIR T 2 B AR M 1 R 1T o i
BTIZEREE2ATFE HE
2 58 4M 3% 1755,000,0000% ( ==
— PO 4F : 45,000,00017 ) A8 R &) &
MAR - DA R B A EE /MR AN550,000
T (—ZZ — P04 : 450,000 7T)
o f5 173545 (B 23,420,000 7T ( ==
— P4 : 23,940,000/ 7T ) °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Fair value of share options and assumptions

(c)

34. REBRRHERTEI (&)

The fair value of share options granted under the scheme
at the date of grant was determined using the Binomial

option pricing model with the following inputs:

(c) BREZAFERRS
R BIREBRE IR 2
BRI 2 N FETRA A
EERAZTIBAREETE:

22 September 22 September 13 November 16 October

Date of grant 2014 2014 2014 2015
—F-mE —E-|mE —E-|mE —%-1f¥

R4 B 8 AAE=+=B HA=+=H +-A+=H +H+5H
Fair value at the date of grant HK$0.194 HK$0.258 HK$0.302 HK$0.113
REHBHZATE 0.19478 7T 0.258/8 7T 0.302/8 7T 0.113%8 7T
Weighted average share price from grant period HK$0.5305 HK$0.5305 HK$0.4837 HK$0.248
R B 2 T R B 0.5305/5 7T 0.5305/5 7T 0.4837% 1T 0.248% 7T
Exercise price per share HK$0.518 HK$0.518 HK$0.59 HK$0.238
SRTEE 0518/ T 0518/ T 0.59/% T 0.238% T
Expected volatility 67% 91% 90% 86%
BHR R
Expected dividend yield - - - -
TR A
Expected option period (years) 3.0 10.0 10.0 10.0
EHRBRESAR (F)
Risk-free rate 0.79% 2.04% 1.88% 1.45%

BERBANE

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
of the shares of the Company over the expected option
period. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value of the share options
granted. During the year, the fair value of equity-
settled share-based payment of HK$5,103,117 (2014:
HK$6,578,039) has been recognized in profit or loss.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co. Ltd.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary, First China Securities Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited entered into a sales and purchase
agreement and a supplemental agreement dated 30 May 2014
with Ms. Zhou Dongming and Mr. Xu Yijian (the “Vendors”) in
relation to the acquisition of the entire registered capital of
FINTH R E BRI AR AT (transliterated as Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd) which is principally engaged in the trading
of electronic student card and school safety products in the
PRC. The completion date of the acquisition was 14 July 2014.

The acquisition is expected to enhance the Group’s position
in the telecommunication and information technology sector
in the PRC. It also expects the Group will be benefited from
participating in the student safety network project as this
project will attract investment and business opportunities to
maximize the return of the shareholders.

The Group made an initial payment for acquisition totaling
RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to HK$19,656,000) in cash and
issued 350,000,000 new shares in the capital of the company
(the “Consideration shares”) of which 200,000,000 new shares
were subject to the escrow arrangement according to the
profit guarantee requirement as indicated in the acquisition
agreement. Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the Vendors
guarantee to the Group that the net profit after tax of Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd. (based on its audited accounts)
for each of the three financial years ending 31 December
2015, 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall be
as follows: (i) for the year ending 31 December 2015: not less
than RMB20,000,000; (ii) for the year ending 31 December
2016: not less than RMB30,000,000; (iii) for the year ending 31
December 2017: not less than RMB40,000,000.

35.

EBeH
KERITREERITBRAT
REBEE-ZE—NF+=—A=+—HIEF
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# OFRY) BRA R HEG LA L L RN
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co. Ltd.
(continued)

Such shares shall be released to the Vendors if the business
of the acquired companies achieve the aforesaid profit targets
within a specified period. If the Vendors fail to achieve the
profit targets within a specified period, the Group will receive
cash from the Vendors for the purchase of the shares under
escrow arrangement. The Directors consider it is probable
that the Vendors can achieve the said profits targets and
the cash payments by Vendors to acquire the shares under
the escrow arrangement will not be required. The fair value
of this contingent consideration receivable is estimated at
approximately HK$4,200,000.

The Group is required to recognize the acquired companies’
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that satisfy
the recognition criteria at their fair values at the acquisition
date. In the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has used the estimated fair values of
the acquired assets and liabilities performed by an independent
valuer. The estimated fair values of the acquired assets and
liabilities over cost of acquisition is recorded as gain on bargain
purchase.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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35. ¥¥B8H (&)
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35. ¥BE&H (=)
Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co. Ltd. KEFRITXEBEREBRAT (&)
(continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of REEAHERBEERCHERAG:
acquisition:
Fair value
AFEE
HK$
T
Plant and equipment Hes s 948,069
Intangible assets mEAE 244,471,500
Inventories rE 284,197
Other receivables Hoth & 5K IR 2,378,918
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIES 1,448,717
Other payable H b & 3008 (6,538,707)
Deferred tax liabilities ,JJRIE\E\L (56,230,535)
Net assets acquired D EEFE 186,762,159

Gain on bargain purchase arising on the acquisition of

Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.:

WERITREBMRARARELZ
= B Y

HK$

7T
Fair value of net assets acquired shown as above EXFREREEEFE 2 RATE 186,762,159
Less: Purchase consideration B BERE
— Cash B (19,656,000)
— Fair value of Consideration shares —REBRHZAFE (105,000,000)
— Contingent consideration receivable — SR ARE 12,039,300
Gain on bargain purchase AE W= 74,145,459

BENRAKREEERAA
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(continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary:

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35. ¥BEt (=)
Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co. Ltd. KERITXEERBZFRATE (&)

WE-—FNBARZESREFE:

HK$

T

Consideration paid in cash LRSS 2RE 19,656,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired BoEWERE RIS EEIER (1,448,717)
18,207,283

Gain from a bargain purchase of HK$74,145,459 was
recognized upon completion of the acquisition of the Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd. The gain from a bargain purchase
on acquisition was mainly attributable to depressed market
value of the acquired business because of years of losses
due to challenging economic environment and the limitation
of the fund invested in the product development in the
telecommunication and information technology section for
without the financial support from external parties.

Acquisition cost of HK$1,363,452 have been charged to other
operation expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The fair value of other receivable is HK$2,378,918. The
contractual receivable amount for the other receivable is the
same amount and it is not expected to be uncollectible.

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income since 14 July 2014
contributed by Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd was
HK$1,955,847. The loss of HK$7,458,110 was incurred for the
same period.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co. Ltd.
(continued)

Had this business combination been effected at 1
January 2014, the revenue of the Group would have been
approximately HK$40,926,237, and the profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$112,950,530. The
Directors consider these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the combined
Group on an annualized basis and to provide a reference point
for comparison in future periods.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

35.

36.

A MW &M

—hFEt-A=t—RLEE

EBEH (&)
WERNTXEERZFRAT (&)

WZEBAEHER T —NF—A
—HBEB AEBCEEERABY
40,926,237 .- MEEFBEBLD
112,950,580 L - EER B % F [#
EZE|SFTEBAIEEFEEHEZAME
EXE MBI ETEARKEHE 2T
AR .

EERORE

FEEERRBEA
R-ZFE-—RAF+-_A=+—H0 X&KHE
RIBTAT RS EHORERYE RN

leases in respect of rented premises as follows: ZARREEEERBRENT
2015 2014
—¥-AF — 4
HK$ HK$
BT &I
No later than one year —F R 2,445,035 3,524,583

Later than one year and —FEREFR

no later than five years - 2,139,984
2,445,035 5,664,567

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of one to three (2014: one to three) years.
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. EXHFHEALRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRIt M BmEREMESEE LS
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the RSN AEBRFERNFTLATER
Group had the following significant related party transactions EHEBEALRS:

during the year:

2015 2014
—E—A%F —Z—
Note HK$ HK$
MsE I 8T
Office rentals paid to a director XNTESEZHAERS () 3,167,607 274,291
Service income received from BEERBRKE 2
Guangdong Brightzone Bk 7 WA (ii) 630,962 547,362
Service income received B B2 A B WE 2
from an associate Rl 7% U A (iii) 19,905,079 -
2015 2014
—E¥—A%F —E—mF
HK$ HK$
I BT
Key management compensation TEBTEABZFHMH
— Salaries and other short-term — ¥ & & H M5 A
employee benefits 1B E & F 8,070,253 4,478,744
— Share options — I i i 5,613,208 6,578,039
- Post-employment benefits —BEBAR T 73,500 50,000
13,756,961 11,106,783

1 f q First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.

(continued)
Notes:

(i) The office rentals were based on terms agreed between the parties
involved.

(ii) Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
an agreement with Guangdong Brightzone pursuant to which Guangdong
Brightzone has appointed Wealth Alliance for the website operation and
sales promotion services. The service income were based on terms
agreed between the parties involved. Guangdong Brightzone is owned
as to 88.75% by Shenzhen Guangxin and 11.25% by independent third
parties.

Shenzhen Guangxin is controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin. Ms. Chen
Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming (who is a former Director
of the Company) and is therefore an associate of a connected person
of the Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions between Wealth Alliance and Guangdong Brightzone under
the Sales Agency Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
on the part of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

(i) Service income from an associate was charged at a negotiated value. No
significant balance was carried forward at the end of the reporting period
in respect of the current year.

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$30,230,000 (2014: HK$30,230,000) to a bank in respect
of general banking facility granted to two (2014: two) of its
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
an amount of HK$10,494,013 (2014: HK$12,377,681) of such
facility was being utilized by the subsidiaries. In the opinion of
the Directors, no material liabilities will arise from the above
corporate guarantee which arose in the ordinary course of
business and fair value of the corporate guarantee granted by
the Company is immaterial.

EXARENLRS (&)
fit i -

0] MAERSTIREBEEBETHE %

Fo

#

s

(ii) ER(ARRZ2ENBAR) BHEREBR
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38. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 3B.AXATIMBRABR
COMPANY
2015 2014
“¥-—-4fF —FT—MEF
Note HK$ HK$
M =E BT BT
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment e RIS e 44,236 44,121
Investments in subsidiaries AMB AR ZIRE 18 4,771,260 4,771,260
Interests in associates REE R 2= 14,886,819 24,175,538
19,702,315 28,990,919
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENZIEBE e R
other receivables E@ﬁ%uk%ﬁﬁ 195,967 160,102
Amounts due from former Directors J& 4% Bil Tf’ci% 831,419 32,541,415
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B B 2 71 ER0E 513,126,723 466,981,941
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 156,526,048 178,056,457
670,680,157 677,739,915
Total assets BEEEE 690,382,472 706,730,834
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals H b fE A /T)\IE&W;# B 849,871 1,106,936
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHB B 13,606,591 14,562,582
14,456,462 15,669,518
Net current assets RBEEFRE 656,223,695 662,070,397
Net assets EEFE 675,926,010 691,061,316
Capital and reserves BAEREE
Share capital fi% < 64,989,582 64,989,582
Share premium Hx ) /ﬁﬂﬁ 1,614,798,866 1,614,798,866
Share-based compensation A& 10 #5181
reserve 34,149,275 29,832,788
Accumulated losses Z25rEE (1,038,011,713) (1,018,559,920)
Total equity HESEE 675,926,010 691,061,316
Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui
EFRE RES
Director Director
EZE EZE

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015



-_:.T.Zs: o ;-"- r ?\' = = -
Sy ,T‘N; g

NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GRE BT R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—RAF+-A=+—RAIFE

39. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 39. KAEHE
Share-based
Share Share Warrants compensation ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total equity
& BRiyitE RRESGE ROGEERE Rt EREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Balance as at 1 January 2014 RZS-ME-A—-Az&H# 44,589,602  1,075,500,687 223,224 23,254,749 (1,035,232,547) 108,335,715
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £R2 AR AE - - - - 16,672,627 16,672,627
Equity-settled share option arrangements  ARRESE 2 BIR % 5 - - - 6,578,039 - 6,578,039
Issue of share by way of placement BBREETRN 8,899,980 855,999,200 - - - 364,899,180
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrant ~ RAREFETEME TR 8,000,000 91,423,224 (223,224) - - 99,200,000
Issue of ordinary shares related TEBAMBTLAR
with business combination 3,500,000 101,500,000 - - - 105,000,000
Transaction costs attributable to RERAEER B
the placement of shares - (9,624,245) - - - (9,624,245)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 WZE-EFE+-A=1-H
pd =i 64,989,582  1,614,798,866 - 29,832,788 (1,018,559,920) 691,061,316
Balance as at 1 January 2015 RZZE-15-A-H
JEB 64,989,582  1,614,798,866 - 29,832,788  (1,018,559,920) 691,061,316
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZABELE - - - - (20,238,423) (20,238,423
Equity-settled share option arangements MBS E 2 BRER B - - - 5,103,117 - 5,103,117
Transfer of share-based compensation BRERINSERR
reserve upon the forfeiture or ERROBERSE
expiry of share options - - - (786,630) 786,630 -

Balance as at 31 December 2015 RZE-nF+-fA=+-H
a3 64,989,582  1,614,798,866

34,149,275  (1,038,011,713) 675,926,010

EENERAKEARA
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Bt %5 W=

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the FHiFAZKITHABKEEZGAMBTRERZA
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published SBEBEERENBNFEEXEUNREEREE
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: BEFHNT :

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—B-1f —T-QNF —T-=F —T--F —T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT on B om
(Restated)
(&)
RESULTS £
Revenue Uz 50,007,292 40,616,592 14,809,860 9,185,990 12,686,091
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETERA (BR) /FE (79,676,433) 120,366,125  (42,467,528)  (44,686,708)  (34,727,222)
Income tax income/(expense) EHKA/ (%) 18,628,673 (3,147,706) (844,111) 181,522 (4,702,505)
Profit from discontinued operation BRILEEEBHE - - 9,333,152 5,097,537 -
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(FR)/FE (61,047,760) 117,218,419  (33,978.487)  (39,407,649)  (39,429,727)
Attributable to: i
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (62,850,046) 114,540,442  (34,033,645)  (39,019,328)  (37,855,857)
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,802,286 2,677,977 55,158 (388,321) (1,573,870)
(61,047,760) 117,218,419 (33,978,487) (39,407,649) (39,429,727)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+-HLER
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“B-if -—T-mF& -FT-=f —F--f —T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT on on BT om
(Restated)
(IBE5)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE BRREERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total assets BE#E 802,266,703 900,049,433 154,122,355 146,521,839 195,251,602
Total liabilties afEEBE (71,550,339)  (98,780,783)  (35,364,540)  (48,379,794) (61,807,003
Non-controlling interests FERER (7,006,907) (5,267,851) (2,607,017 1) 3,557,730

723,709,457 795,991,799 116,150,798 98,142,044 137,002,329
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